)! OF LEXINGTON &

RICHLAND COUNTIES

Agenda
Board of Trustees
Regular Meeting
Location: Center for Advanced Technical Studies
Video Livestream https://lexrich5.rev.vbrick.com/#/webcasts/boardmeeting

March 14, 2022

1. Call to order at 6:00 p.m.
2. Approval of the agenda
3. Enter Executive Session to consider the following:

a. Selected employment items (Exhibit A) (Action)

b. Selected employment items (Exhibit B) (Information Only)

c. Legal advice regarding force main relocation on Amicks Ferry Road
d. Legal advice regarding retaining wall at Harbison West Elementary

4, Call to order at 7:00 p.m.

5. Welcoming remarks — Jan Hammond, Board Chair

6. Invocation — Matt Hogan, Board of Trustees

7. Pledge of Allegiance — Matt Hogan, Board of Trustees
8. School Board Spotlight

9, Superintendent’s Report

a. COVID-19 Mitigations Update
b. Mental Health in LR5 and School Clinical Counseling
c. How are the Children? — Literacy Update
d. Education Funding Reform
i. Debbie EImore, SCSBA Director of Governmental Relations- Report
on Current Legislation
ii. Marty Rawls, Chief Finance Officer - New Education Funding Model
Impact (Exhibit C)

11. Approval of the minutes of the February 28, 2022 board meeting

12. Public Participation*® .



ACTION AGENDA

13. Action as Necessary or Appropriate on Matters Discussed in Executive Session
14, Recommendation on Approved Attorney List

15. Second and Final Reading of Proposed Revisions to Board Policy GCB “Professional Staff
Contracts and Compensation” (Exhibit D)

16. Second and Final Reading of Proposed Revisions to Board Policy GDB “Support Staff
Compensation” (Exhibit E)

DISCUSSION AGENDA
17, Discussion and First Reading of Bond Resolution for Spring Bond [ssuance (Exhibit F)
18. Discussion on Guiding Principles on School Facilities (Exhibit G)

19. Discussion and First Reading of Proposed New Board Policy DD “Funding Proposals, Grants, and
Special Projects” {Exhibit H)

20. Discussion and First Reading of Proposed New Board Policy BC “Board Member Conduct and
Commitment” (Exhibit 1)

21. Discussion and First Reading of Proposed Revisions to Board Policy BCA “Board Member Code of
Ethics” (Exhibit J)

22. Discussion and First Reading of Proposed Revisions to Board Policy BCB “Board Member Conflict
of Interest” (Exhibit K)

23. Adjourn
INFORMATION AGENDA

24, The next regular scheduled hoard meeting will be March 28, 2022, at the Center for Advanced
Technicatl Studies.

* The Board welcomes and encourages public participation. However, the privilege of addressing the
Board does not include the ability to make personal attacks on any Board Member, district employee, or
other member of the public. We respectfully ask that you adhere to the procedures and the decorum
provided in board policy BEDH “Public Participation at Meetings”. Your comments should be limited to
three minutes. Questions asked during public participation will be handled in accordance with board
policy BEDH.

COVID-19 NOTICE: Due to state social distancing guidelines, seating capacity at our school board
meeting will be limited. Mask use is encouraged. The district will live stream board meetings to provide
virtual viewing options.



Minutes/February 28, 2022

The Board of Trustees of School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties met at the
Center for Advanced Technical Studies with the following members present:

Mrs. Rebecca Blackburn Hines

Mrs. Nikki Gardner, Secretary

Mrs. Jan Hammond, Chair

Mr. Matt Hogan

Mrs. Catherine Huddle

Mr. Ken Loveless, Vice Chair

Mrs. Tifani Moore

Dr. Akil Ross, Interim Superintendent

The following staff were in attendance:

Mr. Todd Bedenbaugh, Executive Director of Operations

Dr. Michael Harris, Chief Student Services and Planning Officer
Mrs. Anna Miller, Chief of Academics and Administration

Mrs. Marty Rawls, Chief Finance Officer

Mrs. Amanda Taylor, Director of Communications

Dr. Tamara Turner, Chief Human Resources Officer

A livestream video link was provided to the public as a viewing option for the February 28, 2022,
board meeting.

Chair Hammond called the meeting to order and gave welcoming remarks.

Jan Hammond, Board Chair of the Board of Trustees, gave the Invocation and Pledge of
Allegiance.

The Board conducted the School Board Spotlight.

During the Superintendent's Report, Dr. Ross presented updates on Safety and Security in our
Schools, and Public Concerns and Complaints About Instructional Resources. Also, during the
Superintendent’s Report, Mr. Vann Holden presented an update on the COVID-19 Dashboard:
and Mrs. Marty Rawls presented Monthly Financial Reports (Exhibit G).

During the public participation Todd Grosh spoke about communication between Superintendent
Spearman and our District, books/materials and breaking laws.

The Board presented for discussion:
e Spring Bond Issuance (Exhibit H)
¢ Discussion of Potential Salary Study (Exhibit K)
¢ Discussion and First Reading of Proposed Revisions of Board Policy GCB “Professional
Staff Contacts and Compensation” (Exhibit M)

A = Absent
www.lexrichb.org AR = z;bitﬁg

1020 Dutch Fork Road « Irmo, South Carolina 29063 « (803) 476-8000 i
“Pursuing Excellence for Tomorrow's Challenges” B=TRecuse



« Discussion and First Reading of Proposed Revisions to Board Policy GDB “Support Staff
Compensation” (Exhibit N)

A = Absent
AB = Abstain
N=No

X ="Yes

R =Recuse



Record of Voting

SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE
OF
LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

Meeting of February 28, 2022

WMZ—TIT ZACLWXOrrw

AMZOD G0

OZO0=E=E>»T

Z>»0O0I

mrooCcCxT
mOMmMrm<<OoOr

mnoo=g

1.

M. Huddle S. Loveless

Approve the agenda.

M. Loveless S. Huddle

I make the motion that the Board deletes Executive Session
ltemn 5(c.) {Legal advice regarding implications of Board
Policy BC “Board Member Code of Conduct”) from tonight's
agenda.

Vote on original motion.,

M. Loveless S. Gardner

I make the motion to enter executive session to consider the
following: a.) Selected employment items (Exhibit A)
(Action); b.} Selected employment items (Exhibit B)
(Information Only); ¢.) Receipt of legal advice regarding
latent roof defects; d.) Contractual matter regarding the
purchase of property (Exhibit C); e.) Receipt of confidential
real estate appraisal information on the District Office
property (Exhibit D); f.) Contractual matter regarding third-
party inspections at Piney Woods Elementary School (Exhibit
E); and g.) Contractual matter regarding the construction of
Chapin High School stadium (Exhibit F).

M. Gardner 5. Huddle

| move that we send the following letter to Governor Henry
McMaster and Superintendent Molly Spearman regarding a
letter Superintendent Spearman sent to Trustee Blackburn

A = Absent
AB = Abstain
N=No

X =Yes

R =Recuse




SCHOOL. DISTRICT FIVE
OF
LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

Meeting of February 28, 2022

OMZ—I ZIACWXXOrrm

AMZOADXFE

CZO=E=2>rI

Z>r»®0O0XT

mrogocCcI
memrr M QOr

maoO0o=Z

Hines on February 8, 2022 in response fo a request Mrs.
Blackburn Hines sent on School Board letterhead to
Governor McMaster and Superintendent Spearman on
February 4, 2022,

*ER

Dear Ms. Spearman,

We have received a copy of the attached letter that Trustee
Blackburn Hines sent you on February 4, 2022 on our Board of
Trustees letterhead and sighed as “In Service to the District 5
Community, Rebecca Blackburn Hines, Board Trustee”. We are also
in receipt of the attached response from you to Ms. Blackburn Hines
dated February 8, 2022.

The letter from Ms. Blackburn Hines was never discussed nor agreed
fo by this board. In fact, most board members and our board chair

were completely unaware that she was sending the letter and only
became aware of her letter after your response was received.

Per our board policies BB “All powers of the board lig in its action as
a body. Board members acting as individuals have no authority over
personnel or school affairs.” and BDD board members will “function
only as a board and not as individuals”. In addition, the SCSBA
Code of Ethics, to which all Trustees have agreed, states “‘As a
school board member in South Carolina, | pledge my efforts to
improve public education in my community and will solemnly try to
take no individual action which would compromise the integrity of the
board or administration”. In addition, South Carclina law does not
vest any authority in individual Trustees to act on their own on behalf
of a school district.

Ms. Blackburn Hines misrepresented our Superintendent's
comments regarding this matter. During discussion at our 1/24/22
board meeting Cr. Ross referenced the Island Trees School District
v. Pico case and the need to follow our policy for review of library
materials. This meeting occurred the day before the 1/25/22
memorandum regarding best practices model policy for SBE Library
Materials from Katie Nilges. In the Irmo News on 2/4/222 Dr. Ross

A = Absent
AB = Abstain
N=No

X =Yes

R =Recuse




SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE
OF
LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

Meeting of February 28, 2022

mwmzZ—I ZACODXRO>rrw

AMZ2020>r0

OZ0=E=E>»TI

Zr»mO0ox

mrogocI
OMrm<Or

moQoo=

stated “The graphic sexual content caused me to ask the book to be
pulled, but it was not. It was not supposed to be. The Supreme Court
decided in 1982, in the Island Trees School District v. Pico case, that
local schoal boards may not remove books from school libraries
simply because they dislike the ideas contained in the book.
However, books can be removed when two review committees
review the book and determine it is not educationally suitable

for students.” {hitps://thenewirmonews.com/in-our-schools/). Ms.
Blackburn-Hines omitted this sentence in her letter to you.

To-date the only objection our superintendent has received from Mrs.
Blackburn Hines was made during November 2021. It referenced a
textbook which is also not in use in our district. She did not inform the
rest of the board as to her objections. She took the liberty to demand
the removal all on her own. Textbook approval, of course, is a
completely different matter from that of a library book and by law, the
board, not an individual board member, has responsibility for
textbook approval.

It is disappointing that errcneous assertions by one board member
led you to conclude that “Based on the timeline of events and the
information provided to districts, it is clear District Five's Board and
administration failed to do its job by properly vetting the obscene
materials in question even after the state very publicly encouraged
them to do s0”. We hope that by the timeline and facts presented in
this [etter, you now know that our board and administration followed
our policy {one very similar to the model policy proposed on 1/25/22)
and the book questioned by Governor McMaster was never in our
libraries and was not mentioned by parents at the 1/24/22 board
meeting.

Our administration, exactly like the one before it, followed our policies
ILJ and KEC. Our administration also followed the legal advice of
our attorneys regarding district policy and Island Trees School
District v. Pico. As such, our board and administration have properly
followed policy and we have done our job. You are always welcome
to contact our Board Chair, Jan Hammond, and we are sure
Superintendent Ross also would welcome questions.

A = Absent
AB = Abstain
N=No
X=Yes

R =Recuse




SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE
OF
LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

Meeting of February 28, 2022

OMZ—T ZACODXRXOX»rm

AMZO0X0

oOZ0=EE2>» T

Z>00xT

mroOocCxIT
momrm<QOr

mIzOoOo=

Our board does not support inappropriate content in our libraries; but
we aiso recognize the need to follow policy and the law. We will
certainly review our current policies in light of SCDOE'’s 1/25/22
memorandum and recommended model policy. As previously noted,
our current policies are already substantially similar to our the model
policy your department has proposed, including requiring a complaint
form and committee review.

In summary, our board fully supports the handling of this matter by
our superintendent and administration.

Sincerely,

The Trustees of School District Five of Lexington and Richland
Counties via & motion adopted by the board at its regular meeting on
February 28, 2022.

4, M. Loveless S. Huddle

| make the motion that we approve the minutes of the
February 7, 2022 board meeting.

5, M. Huddle 8. Gardner

| move that we accept the selected employment items per
Exhibit A.

6. M. Hogan S. Huddle

| make a motion that the Board approve the contract with
Edcon and execute the contract with Edcon for renovations
of the stadium at Chapin High School.

7. M. Huddle 8. Gardner

| move that we have the Superintendent move to gain access

A = Absent
AB = Abstain
N=No

X =Yes

R =Recuse




SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE
OF
LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

Meeting of February 28, 2022

OmMZ—TIT ZJCwWXROF>rCm

IMZOITPEO

OZ0=E=E>»T

ZrOHO0xI

mrroOoOCXI
momMmrm<Or

muoOO=E

via thoroughfare to S-40-80 / a/k/a Shady Grove Road from
the propesed new District Office site including required
acgess and improvements for the District Office to utilize.

M. Huddle S. Loveless

| move to censure Trustee Rebecca Blackburn Hines. Board
Policy BE states “Roberts Rules of Order will govern all
matiers not covered by the rules of the Board.” Per chapter
72 of Roberts Rules of Order “A deliberative assembly has
the inherent right to make and enforce its own laws and
punish an offender,” Further, SC law 53-19-60, as
interpreted by our Attorney General, provides school boards
the ability to censure a trustee.

As such, | move that we censure Trustee Blackburn Hines
for violation of: 1) Board Policy BB "School Board Legal
Status” which states "All powers of the board lie in its actions
as a body. Board members acting as individuals have no
authority over personnel or school affairs"; 2) Board Policy
BDD "Board-Superintendent Relationship” which states
board members will "function only as a board and not as
individuals”; 3) The SCSBA Code of Ethics which states "As
a school board member in South Caroling, | pledge my
efforts to improve public education in my community and wiil
solemnly try to take no individual action which would
compromise the integrity of the board or administration"; 4)
Board Policy BCA “Board Member Code of Ethics,” which
states "A board member should honor the critical
responsibilities that his/fher membership demands by doing
the following: refusing to play politics in either the traditional
partisan or any petlty sense.”

Specifically, Ms. Blackburn Hines, viclated the SCSBA Code
of Ethics and the ahove noted board policies through the
following actions: At the 1/24/22 board meeting she stated

A= Absent
AB = Abstain
N=No
X=Yes

R =Recuse




SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE
OF
LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

Meeting of February 28, 2022

OMmZ—TIT ZAACwROP>Prwm

AMZOAD>PQ

ODZ0=EE=E>rT

Zr>»®m0xIT

mrOoOCI
wemMrm<Oor

mIuoOo=E

“Dr. Ross we had a conversation this weekend and |
expressed concern that there was a book in irmo High
School". Her intent became clear when, in the same
meeting, she reprimanded him in public session for not
following her demands to remove a book from the library with
the words "you said it would be addressed first thing this
morning and it's still in the irmo High School library”. She
unilaterally directed the superintendent to act and
encouraged him to violate board policy KEC. On 2/4/22 she
sent a letter to the SC Superintendent, on board letterhead,
critical of our superintendent without the knowledge, advice
or consent of other board members and signed the letter as
a trustee. This letter initiated an uninformed reply critical of
our administration which was published on the front page of
a local newspaper.

Through her actions, Ms. Blackburn Hines has caused
irreparable harm to the school district and its

superintendent. In addition to this public reprimand, Mrs.
Blackburn Hines shall be barred from serving as a committee
chair or an executive officer of the board.

If we don't acknowledge and censure a board member who
disregards the trust placed in them by our superintendent,
staff, students, and fellow board members, future boards will
not be trusted by our community and other board members
will be free to similarly disregard board policies.

8.

M. Gardner S. Moore

| move that we approve the revised draft of the 2022-2023
School Calendar (Exhibit I).

10.

M. Loveless S. Hogan

| would like to make a motion that we approve the 2022-
2023 Board Meeting Schedule as shown in Exhibit J.

A = Absent
AB = Abstain
N=No

X =Yes

R =Recuse




B|G|H; H|H|L]|M
LIA|JA|O|]U]|O|OD
AlR]M|G|D|V]O
C|D{M|A|D{IE]|R
K| N|[O]|N L L|E
SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE B E N E E
OF U| R | D S
LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES R S
N
Meeting of February 28, 2022
H
I
N
E
S
11. M. Loveless S. Huddle X X1 X | X X X | X
I would like to make a motion that we direct administration to
proceed with an RFP for a Potential Salary Study, and that
the administration brings the results back to the Board for
approval (Exhibit K).
12, M. Loveless S. Huddle X | X | X | X | X | X | X
! move that we defer agenda iterns #21 and #24 to our next
scheduled board meeting (Exhibit L & Exhibit O).
13. M. Gardner S.  Huddle XX | X X | XX X
| move that we approve First Reading proposed revisions to
Board Policy GCB “Professicnal Staff Contracts and
Compensation” as shown in (Exhibit M).
14. M. Gardner S. Huddle X |1 X | X[ X X XX
| move that we approve First Reading of proposed revisions
to Board Policy GDB "Support Staff Compensation” as
shown in (Exhibit N}.
16. M. Hogan S.  Blackburn Hines X X |1 X | X | X | X ]| X
Adjourn at 9:59 p.m.
A = Absent
AB = Abstain
N=No
X=Yes

R =Recuse




February 18, 2022 * /
Aschment e P AI
inutes of the - s
:::gert?m‘,l at the r of Board pnember
The Honorable Molly Spearman pursuant to ééth Carelina Code

i i Ann. Section 30-4-90(a)(4) o
South Carolina Department of Education nd Board Policy BEDG. The Board majority
1429 SEﬂate Stl’EEt did not approve, d|sapp|‘0\¢'e’ or othET'Wlie
Columbia, South Carolina 29201 act upon the contents of this attachment.

Dear Superintendent Spearman:

| am writing in response to your letter dated February 8, 2022, addressed to Rebecca Blackburn Hines, a
member of the School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties Board of Trustees. Though your
letter directly criticizes my actions as Superintendent as the result of your apparent misunderstanding
about how this District has handled public complaints about books contained in District Five media
centers, you did not copy me on your letter.

| specifically directed principals to determine whether the book that was the subject of Governor
McMaster's November 10, 2021, letter was in any of our schools. A second verification of the book in
question, Gender Queer: A Memoir authored by Maia Kobabe found that the book is not and has never
been in a District Five Library. | have a statement from our Coordinator of Instructional Technology,
Instructional Technology Specialist, and Lead Librarians for both Secondary and Elementary levels
verifying this book was never in circulation in our district. Significantly and contrary to your assertion, the

book Gender Queer: A Memoir was not discussed during the January 24th, 2022, School District Five Board
of Trustees meeting.

Please be advised that, following my receipt of the information provided by the Department in November
2021, | immediately began discussing the issue of controversial materials in school libraries with the
District’s building principals and District administrators.

As part of those meetings in November and December 2021, | also reviewed with principals the process
outlined in District Five Board Policy KEC and Administrative Rule KEC-R for parents and/or District Five
citizens to file a complaint about a specific book. | have enclosed a copy of that Policy and Administrative
Rule, which has been in place since 2013, as well as the agendas of those meetings for your information.

A District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties Board meeting was held on January 24, 2022, During
the public participation portion of that meeting, several District Five citizens read from sexually explicit
portions of a book, All Boys Aren’t Blue, authored by George Johnson. As | understand from my
investigation into the matter, this book was on the shelf at one school, photographed by one student, and
returned in less than one minute on January 24", This book was never “checked out” of the library.

www.lexrichd,org
1020 Dulch Fork Road « frmo, South Carolina 29063 - (803) 476-8000
“Pursuing Excellence for Tomorrow's Challenges”



The Honorable Molly Spearman
February 18, 2022
Page 2

On January 25, 2022, | was contacted by a citizen via email who requested that the following books be
removed from the District Five libraries:

All Boys Aren't Blue - George Johnson

Eleanor & Park - Rainbow Rowell

Monday's Not Coming - Tiffany D. Jackson

Me and Earl and the Dying Girl - Jesse Andrews
Dreaming in Cuban - Christina Garcia

abwnN =

linformed the citizen of Board Policy KEC “Public Concerns and Complaints about Instructional Resources”
and provided the Complaint Form that must be used to file a formal complaint about instructional
resources. | followed the same steps with a second citizen who emailed me requesting that | remove the
same five books on February 1, 2022. To date, | have not received a complaint form for any book.
Consequently and in accordance with Board Policy/Administrative Rule KEC/KEC-R, the books are
currently in the library. If any book is ultimately determined “educationally unsuitable” for students as
the result of a formal complaint and the two-step review process, the book may be removed. Our two-
step review process is in line with the Model Policy for Library/Media Center Materials and
Reconsideration Process your office released in the January 25th, 2022 Memoranda.

| explained our two-step process to the School District Five Board of Trustees via email on January 25th,
2022, and to the community in the Irmo News and Lake Murray News on Feb 2, 2022. As a result, | was
surprised to read the February 4th, 2022, letter from Mrs. Blackburn Hines to you and Governor Henry
McMaster which stated, “In a recent local media article, our Superintendent asserted the books in
question were appropriately allowed to remain in our school libraries pursuant to U.S. Supreme Court
case, Island Trees School District v. Pico.” If | was provided the most basic form of due process, | could
have shared that Mrs. Blackburn Hines’ letter omitted the next sentence in the article which stated,
“However, books can be removed when two review committees review the book and determine it is not
educationally suitable for students.”

Based on the above information, | am requesting you withdraw your letter to Ms. Blackburn Hines as it
contains clearly erroneous information and has caused damage to both my reputation and the reputation
of School District Five. | appreciate and look forward to your immediate attention to this matter.

Sincerely,
W s e
Dr. Akil E. Ross, Sr. L N '
Superintendent Attachment 2 __jsjnc! ded with
i the minutes of the 2 w'g!—"" _

meating,af the ber

pursuant to Sou Carelina Code

Ann. Section 30-4-90(a)(4) o
and Board Policy BEDG. The Board ma;onty
did not approve, disapprove, or otherwise
act upon the contents of this attachment.



The Honorable Molly Spearman
February 18, 2022

Page 3

Enclosures:

Mrs. Jan Hammond, Board Chair
Mr. Ken Loveless, Board Vice-Chair
Mrs. Nikki Gardner, Board Secretary

Mrs. Rebecca Blackburn Hines, Board Member

Mr. Matt Hogan, Board Member
Mrs. Cathy Huddle, Board Member
Mrs. Tifani Moore, Board Member

Board Policy KEC “Public Concerns And Complaints About Instructional Resources”

Administrative Rule KEC-R “Public Concerns And Complaints About Instructional

Resources”

Form KEC-E “Citizen’s Request for Review of Education Materials” -
November 17, 2021 Principals and Directors Meeting Agenda
December 1, 2021 Principals and Directors Meeting Agenda
February 2, 2022 Principals and Directors Meeting Agenda

The Irmo News Article

Attachment is included with
the minutes to\‘ the -"—’em =
medjﬂ

pursuant to Carolina Code

Sectl -4-90(a)(4) o
Ancri‘ 'Boardogoﬁgy BED%S. The Board ma;g:ty
33: not approve, disapprove, or c:t!:‘erw:1 /
act upon the contents of this attachment.



2/18/22, 12:31 PM Document

Policy KEC Public Concerns And Complaints About Instructional Resources

Issued 9/13

Purpose: To establish the basic structure for receiving and handling public concerns and complaints about
instructional resources.

The board recognizes its responsibility in the matter of selection and provision of instructional materials. Any
parent/legal guardian or citizen who resides within the district's boundaries may lodge a complaint against any
books or instructional materials being used in the school system.

The complainant must submit criticism of books or other instructional materials in writing to the superintendent
using the "Citizens Request for Review of Educational Materials" form KEC-E. Committees will review all
complaints (building level and district level) in accordance with approved administrative rule KEC-R.

The board directs that any challenged materials remain in the school pending final action upon the complaint.
However, the school may observe the request of a parent/legal guardian that his/her own child not be assigned a
specific book or instructional resources.

The superintendent will inform the board of all complaints about instructional materials.
Adopted 3/17/75; Revised 6/7/82, 4/16/90, 9/23/13
Legal references:

S.C. Code, 1976, as amended:

Section 59-19-90(7) - The board of trustees shall control the educational interests of the district.
Case Law:

Board of Education v. Pico, 457 U.S. 853 (1982).

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties

Attachment % is included with

the mlnut:ts l::)f the - b o

pursuant to h Carolina Code

. Section 30-4-90(a)(4) o
:23 Bigrd policy BEDG. The Board ma;ont\,'
did not approve, disapprove, or otherwise
act upon the contents of this attachment.

https://boardpolicyonline.com/?b=lex5 17



2/18/22, 12:32 PM Document

AR KEC-R Public Concerns And Complaints About Instructional Resources

Issued 9/13

Two committees will review all complaints about instructional materials. The principal will name a school level
committee. The superintendent will name a district level committee.

The superintendent will submit the written complaint to the appropriate building principal for review by a school
level committee. The school level review committee will meet within 10 school days of the receipt of a
completed book action request form to consider the complaint. The committee will review the complaint and
formulate a recommendation and the principal will send the recommendation to the district level review
committee within three days of the school level review committee's decision.

The superintendent will appoint the district level review committee annually. The district level review committee
will meet to consider all school level review committee recommendations within 10 school days of their receipt
of the school committee's recommendation. As a part of the review process, the committee may invite the
complainant to appear before it to discuss the nature of the complaints. Following their review, the district
committee will forward a recommendation to the superintendent for review and transmittal to the complainant.
The superintendent will have five school days to respond.

The complainant may appeal the committee's decisions in writing through the superintendent to the board.
Following notification, the board must respond no later than five school days after the second board meeting.

Instructions to evaluating committees

The board directs the evaluating committees to bear in mind the principles of the freedom to learn and to read.
The committees must base their decisions on these principles rather than on defense of individual materials.
Freedom of inquiry is vital to education in a democracy.

The committee should study all materials thoroughly and read available reviews. The committee should check
the general acceptance of the materials by consulting standard evaluation aids and local holdings in other
schools.

The committee must not pull passages or parts out of context. The committee must weigh values and faults
against each other and base its opinions on the material as a whole.

Should a committee recommend the removal of a book, the committee's final report must demonstrate that its
decision was not intended to remove books to deny students' access to ideas which committee members find to
be repugnant. Such an intention would violate Constitutional standards. The committee must further demonstrate
that the books in question are not educationally suitable.

The committee report, reflecting the majority opinion, will be given to the complainant at the conclusion of the
committee's discussion on the questioned materials. Dissenting committee members must not publically
challenge/attack the consensus decision of the entire committee.

The following is the suggested format or outline for report from evaluating committee.

* list of committee members and their positions

* statement ensuring that each committee member read the material in its entir;g a

Abbpchfrment is inclyded with
tha minutes of the —_._&;Z—EL

« list of review source(s) consulted 5 d -
* statement of majority opinion ik::‘aSecﬁnt tgnng—‘t-BO?aI;?:)cm

and Board Policy BEDG. The Board ma__iority
did not approve, disapprove, or otherwise
https:/fboardpolicyonline.com/?b=lex5 act upon the contents of this attachment. 12



2/18/22, 12:32 PM

Document
= committee's final decision
Issued 6/7/82; Revised 8/15/82, 4/16/90, 9/23/13

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties

is included with
Attachment Y p )/w
tl

he minutes of the : mber
meating‘t,at the 7
Carolina Code

pursuant to Sou

Section 30-4-90(2)(4) o
Ang 'Boardo:oﬁgy BEDG. The Board maj‘ggty
caj?d not approve, disapprove, or ott;\er‘gnt
act upon the contents of this attachment.

https://boardpalicyonline.com/?b=lex5

2/2



FILE: KEC-E

CITIZEN’S REQUEST FOR REVIEW OF EDUCATION MATERIALS

Author Type of material
Title

Publisher or producer

Request initiated by

Telephone Address

City and state ZIP code

Do you represent Yourself _ An organization (name)
Other group (name)

1. To what in the work do you object? Please be specific. List pages.

o # is included with
the
2.  What of value is there in this work? et Q‘E
pumnt to So rolina Code
Ann. Section 30-4-90(2)(4) ety
and

did not approve, disapprove, or otherwise

4 o tiha l‘f\ﬂ"ents Q_‘ th]s gttathl"l‘lent.
gLt opor T

3. What do you feel might be the result of using this material?

4. If you did not examine the entire body of this work, why not?

5. Are you aware of the judgements of this work by literary critics?

6. If the material was obtained from the media center as a result of a class
assignment, are you aware of the teacher’s purpose for using it?

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties



7. What do you believe is the theme or purpose of this work?

8. What do you prefer the school to do about this material?
Do not assign/lend it to my child.
Re-evaluate this material.

Withdraw it from the use of all students.

Other (Explain)

9. In its place, what work would you recommend that would convey as valuable a picture and
perspective of the subject treated?

Attachment f is included with
the minutes of the _Q_:_g:&__
meet:inagat tz r;gg Erd 2mber
pursuant to Solth Carolina Code

Ann. Section 30-4-90(a)(4) .

and Board Policy BEDG. The Board majority
did not approve, disapprove, or otherwise
act upon the contents of this attachment.

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties



Principals and Directors Meeting
November 17, 2021

1:00pm - 3:00pm

In-Person: The Center - MPR

Agenda
American Education Week

Interim Superintendent's Office: Dr. Ross

pus.

. Welcome
2. Flowchart
a. Vision, Mission, Outcomes, Feedback
Board Meeting Update
1st Jobs Initiative
Teachers Support Pilot Expectation Coaches

il

Academics and Administration Office: Mrs. Miller

1. Forces Impacting Students 11/3 Results: Table Discussion 11/3 results
a. What can we do to limit the forces that push down against students? Google
Form

2. Instructional/Library/Supplemental Materials and Resources

a. SCDE Memo: Virtual Public Review for Instructional Materials

b. Policy IJL Library/Media Center Materials Selection and Adoption

c. Policy WK Supplementary Materials Selection and Adoption

d. Policy 1JJ Textbook Selection and Adoption

e. Poli ic Concerns and Complain i R r
Communications Office: Mrs. Taylor

1. D5 Celebrations
2. American Education Week
3. District-Wide Weekly Newsletter

Finance Office: Mrs. Rawls

1. 2021-2022 Budget
2. 2022-2023 Staffing/Budget Meetings with Principals (Finance & HR)

‘ +9) & jpeiyed
Human Resources Office: Cnant Wﬁb&" Dr. Turner
1. Substitute Data thve mirutes Of The. F BoardgmpmPe
, B the )
Code
So Carolina
pursuant 0 ST07 5o(a)(4) jorit
Ao Section 307125 The soard malor
an disapprove, t.
dlgt ?Jgt;pt?'\?::;'ltents of this attachmen
a



Operations Office:

Mr. Bedenbaugh
1. Dec 1- Deadline for all safety meetings. Please utilize the attached template. Please
send safety notes to Carli Rollins. Safety Minutes Template

Student Services and Planning Office

Dr. Harris
1. Mandatory Drills Reminder
Around the Room Mrs. Miller
- */6__, jejuded WiEh
the minutes OF
pu t to Sou rolina Code

Section 30-4-90(a)(4) .
A Baard Poilcy BEDG. The Boas;ﬂ emn:%cs)eﬁty
ve, disapprove, or O
g]c?t th‘:? contents of this attachment.



Principals and Directors Meeting
December 1, 2021

1:00pm - 3:00pm

in-Person: The Center - MPR

Agenda

Mrs. Miller

a. Table Discussion: Which slogan was your favorite and why? What resonated
most with you and how will it influence your leadership?
b. Strateqgic Plan action steps to counter factors that push down against students
3. Board Policy IB - Academic Freedom
a. ARIB-R Academic Freedom
b. Table Discussion: What is important to share with faculty and staff? How and
when will you do that?
4. Concerts, Field Trips, and the Covid Dashboard

Communications Office: Mrs. Taylor

1. D5 Celebrations
a. Dutch Fork Football at Benedict on Saturday at 5pm

Finance Office: Mrs. Rawls
1. 2022-2023 Budget Meetings
Human Resources Office: Dr. Turner

1. Policy GDBC Daily Time Records for Support Staff
2. AR GDBC-R Support Staff Overtime Hour

Operations Office: Mr. Bedenbaugh

1. Fire Inspections
2. Fumniture

Student Services and Planning Office Dr. Harris

1. D& Virual Calming Room "
Attachment // is included with

the minutes of the -,

Around the Room rivodking, 2 the re ;e—s‘?—f“!ﬁf""'r— Mrs. Miller
pursuant to South %arc!ina Code

Ann. Section 30-4-90(a)(4) '
and Board Policy BEDG. The Board majority
did not approve, disapprove, or otherwise
act upon the contents of this attachment.



Superintendent's Office:

1. Welcome
2. Flowchart

a. Vision, Mission, Outcomes, Feedback
3. Board Meeting Update

a. Budget Philosophy

b. Legislative Update

¢c. Par i r

d

Principals and Directors Meeting
February 2, 2022
1:00pm - 3:00pm

Google Meet

Agenda

Dr. Ross

ion

. Board Policy KEC “Public Concerns and Complaints about Instructional

Resources”

e. Board Policy KB “Parent Involvement in Education”
f.

Dr. Ross’ #1 Priority

Academics and Administration Office:

Supply Chain (Crayola/Dixon)
School level review committee (KEC)
Academic Trends in District and School
Special Education Child Count Data
Magnet & Choice Application Info and Awards
School Spotlight

a. Master Schedule Ildeas (Huckabee)

b. Admin Show and Recruiting (Norman)
7. Table Talks
a. Thoughts on Spotlight Items

b. Ideas for Summit and Nuts and Bolts

QN2

Communications Office:

1. Celebrations
2. lIsland Trees School District v. Pico Case

Mrs. Miller

Angie Slatton
Sara Wheeler

Mrs. Taylor

Attachment e included with

the minutes of the - . s

meeting: ?‘t the requgg Board Zzer
pursuant to Sou arolina Code

Ann. Section 30-4-90(a)(4)

and Board Policy BEDG. The Board majority
did not approve, disapprove, or otherwise
act upon the contents of this attachment.



Finance Office:

s

Human Resources Office:

1. Recruitment and Retention

Operations Office:

1. Operation Assessments

$50 Fridays - leave - accountability/certification
2. Budgets/Purchase Orders/End of Year Spending

Mrs. Rawils

Dr. Turner

Mr. Bedenbaugh

2. Chromebooks and Smart Board Replacements (Jenny Garris)

Student Services and Planning Office

1

Update on CDC Foundation staff - Contact Tracers

Dr. Harris

2. Let's Talk! (Social Media Awareness for Students and Parents)

Around the Room

Mrs. Miller

Attachment /3 is included with
the minutes of the 2 f_a ﬁd - D
meeting, at \ihe request of r
Mw L
lina Code

pursuant to South Caro

n. Section 30-4-90(a)(4) o
gr?d Board Policy BEDG. The Board majority

herwise
id not approve, disapprove, or ot .
ggz Eponptge coﬁtents of this attachment,



2/18/22, 12:25 PM In Our Schools — New Irmo News

About Us Advertise Privacy Policy Terms and Canditions

THE NEW

Your Community Newy... Online

~EXPO

HOME LATEST NEWS MORE DEPARTMENTS v OPINION ~

PRINT EDITION

art ol

‘\ 1 \.l % ]
INCLYNDOENOOC

} e
FMICIRO =~ DIDINGa
\ Sl

OBITUARY

\)'/OU I @ L EXINGTON

‘ ! MEDICAL CENTER

In Our Schools

ON: FEBRUARY 2,2022 / IN: COLUMNS, EDUCATION

Attachment is included with
the minutes of the a”

meeting, at the requestalB ardmemper
Akil E. Ross, Sr, Ed.D. pursuant to South |!l'farolina Code

. : 30-4-90(a)(4)
Superintendent ) Bosgcr:;o;olicy i s I

did nat approve, disapprove, or otherwise
act upon the contants of this attachment.

I am honored to be named superintendent of Schoof
District Five of Lexington and Richland

Counties. The tradition of excellence of the schools is a
direct reflection of the amazing support

our community provides to the schools. As a result, |
intend to use this platform to engage our

https:/thenewirmonews.com/in-our-schools/

LATEST POSTS

Gail Lancaster recognized
as IPD pillar of the
community

IPD welcomes new officer
Silver Fox Grill is Business of
the month

The South Carolina
Philharmonic presents the
inaugural performance of its
new Chamber Crawl Series
tomorrow night.

15



2/18/22, 12:25 PM

https:/thenewirmonews.com/in-our-schools/

community in the process of educating the over 17,000
students we serve from Piney Woods in

Chapin to Seven Oaks in Irmo.

During public participation at the January 24 Board
meeting, five parents and community

members shared their objections to certain books in our
school libraries. Most notably was the

reading of sexually explicit language from the book All
Boys Aren't Blue by George M. Johnson,

located in one of our schools. The reading of passages
from this book led many to ask the

question, How did this material get into our schools?

The graphic sexual content caused me to ask the book to
be pulled, but it was not. It was not

supposed to be. The Supreme Court decided in 1982, in
the Island Trees School District v. Pico

case, that local school boards may not remove books from
school libraries simply because they

dislike the ideas contained in the book. However, books
can be removed when two review

committees review the book and determine it is not
educationally suitable for students.

A tremendous amount of District Five resources were
spent investigating one copy of a book, in

one school, checked out by one student for less than one
minute. Meanwhile, there are 55

students in jeopardy of not graduating on time in the same
school. The average reading level of

these seniors is 6.2 (6th grade, 2nd month)-andtee

the minutes of the

In Our Schools -~ New Irmo News

e Sheriff: Thieves still
interested in what's under
your car

LIKE US ON FACEBOOK

wsiavs| 1O NOW bmo e

Like Page 2.7 ke

musnews The New Irmo News
=" on Wednesday

The Irmo Police Department re
Lancaster recently for her 34 y
department. Ms. Gail is the lor
irmo employee and a great as
department. As of today, she I
chiefs of police at the Irmo Pol

https://thenewirmonews.com/c
recognized-as-ip.../

THENEWIRMONEWS.COM
Gail Lancaster recognize
The Irmo Police Department r¢

3 Comment Sha

musuws The New Irmo News
on Wednesday

The Irmo Police Department w
is i ¥dfently as Chief of Pol

question is leveled 6.8 (6th grade 8 Tﬂ! p!tthe Eequesg gf %rd Vmﬁn nfficer leff Thrin Thi
pursuant to Soutf Carelina Code

month). Ann. Section 30-4-90(a)(4)

and Board Policy BEDG. The Board majority
did not approve, disapprove, or otherwise

act upon tha contents of this attachment.

2/5



2/18/22,12:25 PM In Our Schools -~ New Irmo News
This was eye-opening. The majority of the 12th graders R Rortaura Rt cryer
struggling to graduate would struggle to The Best Halal Foods.
read the book in question. The larger problem, spreading § AT
faster than COVID-19, is the growing

number of students not able to read to proficiency in our
schools. Globally, one billion people

are not able to understand or produce written information.
A longitudinal study of 4,000

participants by the Casey Foundation found that students
not reading to proficiency at the end

of the 3rd grade are 4x less likely to graduate on time. In
our schools, 59.8% of 2nd through 5th

graders are not on track to meet literacy expectations and
62.9% of 6th through 8th graders are

not on track to meet literacy expectations. Literacy is so
important that being able to read and

write is often linked to life expectancy. Literacy is the
foundation upon which all learning stands.

As superintendent, | am committed to the goal of
improving literacy rates in our community by

focusing on strategies to get all children at or above grade-

level reading proficiency.

There is good news. The 2,600 employees of School f&jﬁ‘w

Attachment

. 5 i : inutes of the
District 5 are committed to the vision of the v 2t the reaugst of BO r
making sure every child feels loved and is able to grow pursuant to Sout4-90f(€:;?:)c"de
Ann. Section 30~ Board majority

’ . . icy BEDG. The
academically, socially, and emotionally. and Board Pollcy So2ih e or otherwise

[ glgt B‘x%ﬁ?zgﬁmnts of this attachment.
In our schools, teachers and staff are working together to

provide all of our children the tools to

be successful readers. In 1987, Researchers William Nagy
and Patricia Herman found that

children who read 20 minutes a day gained 1.8 million
words per year and scored in the 90th

hitps./thenewirmonews.com/in-our-schools/ B



2/18/22, 12:25 PM In Our Schools — New Irmo News
percentile on standardized tests whereas children reading
1 minute a day gained 8,000 words
and scored in the 10th percentile.

We need your help! There are 180 days of the school year,
which leaves 185 days a year that

students are not in school. If you work with children in our
homes, ball fields, churches,

gymnasiums, youth groups and/or playgrounds, help us
encourage children to read at least 20

minutes a day, every day.

The future of our community depends on the present
education of our children.

g, -

FMICH egm DDINGH T
M L EXPO e

/ < included with
Attachment 7 '% ‘Edu - B

Previous Post: Branham to Run for Richland County Council in e mizuﬁg’ﬂ&—-?————; fuu Eﬁ“’ E Esiﬁ Ey‘mber
District 1 pursuant to Sou Carolina Code

! - i -4-90(a)(4) _

Next Post: Residents upset with proposed zoning change Ann. Section 30 Dg - —
g oy g"Eapprove or otherwise

ve, dis 5

:i:t Bgto:%ph?cor'wtents of this attachment.

SEND US YOUR NEWS IDEAS LATEST POSTS GET IN TOUCH
THE NEW Gail

IRMO NEWS Lancaster =

recognized o
Your Communitly Nowr... Online as IPD
B i i i e pillar of Call Us
0 i B toryidea the We'd love to hear from you. We
you have a sto or "
/ community can be reached at

news that you would like to

https://thenewirmanews.com/in-our-schools/ 4/5



2/18/22, 12:25 PM
share? We welcome all content

ideas and Letters to the Editor.

f ¥ 0 =

https./thenewirmonews.com/in-our-schools/

IPD
welcomes
new
officer

Silver Fox
Grillis
Business
of the
month

el

N

FEBRUAR
202:

N

BUSINESE

In Our Schools — New Irmo News

803.772.7506. You can email

us: irmonews@aol.com

LEARN MORE ABOUT US

515



4

Attachment / ’ is included with
the minutes o e —_Z= 5 f mad A
eeting, at the re f

m d gngmber
m.{\)\.s)_ Ao - N‘s-le(ﬂ/ pursuant to Sou%g Carolina Code

) Ann. Section 30-4-90(a)(4
Censure @ Rebecca Blackburn Hines and Board Policy Beoé;.)(‘rrze Board majority

. " . d :
Board pollcy”BE states “Roberts Rules of Order will governaﬁlmgg%&gf ﬁsdf’ftjtggtﬁégﬁﬂes
of the board”. Per chapter 72 of Roberts Rules of Order “A deliberative assembly has the

inherent right to make and enforce its own laws and punish an offender.” Further, SC law 59-
19-60, as interpreted by our Attorney General, provides school boards the ability to censure a

trustee.
As such, I move that we censure Trustee Blackburn Hines for violation of

1) Board policy BB School Board Legal Status which states “All powers of the board lie in
its actions as a body. Board members acting as individuals have no authority over
personnel or school affairs” |

2) Board policy BDD Board-Superintendent Relationship which states board members will
“function only as a board and not as individuals”

3) The SCSBA Code of Ethics which states “As a school board member in South Carolina, I
pledge my efforts to improve public education in my community and will solemnly try to
take no individual action which would compromise the integrity of the board or
administration”

4) Board policy BCA Board Member Code of Ethics, which states “A board member should
honor the critical responsibilities that his/her membership demands by doing the
following: refusing to play politics in either the traditional partisan or any petty sense”

Specifically, Ms. Blackburn Hines, violated the SCSBA Code of Ethics and the above noted

board policies through the following actions:

At the 1/24/22 board meeting she stated “Dr. Ross we had a conversation this weekend and |
expressed concern that there was a book in Irmo High School”. Her intent became clear
when, in the same meeting, she reprimanded him in public session for not following her
demands to remove a book from the library with the words “you said it would be addressed
first thing this morning and it’s still in the Irmo High School library”. She unilaterally
directed the superintendent to act and encouraged him to violate board policy KEC.

On 2/4/22 she sent a letter to the SC Superintendent, on board letterhead, critical of our
superintendent without the knowledge, advice or consent of other board members and
signed the letter as a trustee. This letter initiated an uninformed reply critical of our
administration which was published on the front page of a local newspaper.

Through her actions, Ms. Blackburn Hines has caused irreparable harm to the school district and
its superintendent.

In addition to this public reprimand, Ms. Blackburn Hines shall be barred from serving as a
committee chair or an executive officer of the board.

If we don’t acknowledge and censure a board member who disregards the trust placed in them by
our superintendent, staff, students, and fellow board members, future boards will not be trusted
by our community and other board members will be free to similarly disregard board policies.



It is truly unfortunate that we must spend any time at all addressing matters like this during board
meetings.

The good news is that this administration and board have not and will not allow items like this
(newspaper article titled “Spearman: LRS didn’t do its job™) to distract from the many good
things we are doing in our district like this (1% Jobs Recruitment Fair flyer).

While it might be uncomfortable to deal with a board member’s actions, the foundational
structure of this district is policy. Board policy BA School Board Operational Goals, list 5 goals,
including “to govern the school system in accordance with policy”. We cannot act for the
betterment of our district if one board member is allowed to break policy by privately using
board letterhead to contact state officials to throw our superintendent under the bus.

A misleading letter sent on board letterhead without the board’s knowledge or approval served to
discredit Dr. Ross” and our administration’s integrity with the state department of education and
with our community. In my 30+ years in business I have never seen anyone work as hard as Dr.
Ross and his team have and get so much accomplished in such a short period of time. I am flat
out appalled this has happened to him and this administration.

As expressed by one state’s Ethics Reminders, “The use of agency letterhead for anything other
than official agency business creates the false impression that the correspondence was written
under the agency’s authority and carries that agency’s endorsement.” Sending a letter on board
letterhead, signed as a board trustee, without the approval, let alone the knowledge, of the entire
board, falsely created the impression that the board endorsed the contents of the letter -and that
action compromised the integrity of the board.

I serve on the board of a life insurance company. If I were to use that company’s letterhead to
write the state insurance commissioner and misrepresent the words of our CEO, I have no doubt
that I would be removed from that board.

This board, as a whole, has sent several letters to government officials on board letterhead. In
each and every case, ALL of the trustees had the opportunity to read and either sign or vote on
the letter before it was sent.

Do board members have a right to contact state authorities on their own email or stationery?
Absolutely! Do members have the right to communicate with their constituents? Absolutely! In
fact, the SCSBA Code of Ethics also states that we will pledge our efforts “to seek regular
communications between the board and students, staff and all segments of the community”. I,
like many school board trustees in our state, maintain a Facebook page where I regularly post
happenings in our district and my personal recaps of board meetings for those were unable to
attend. The key difference is those communications are clearly framed as being from an
individual board member.

mmt-* o LI iy g
the minutes rd member

meeting, at thg re t of
pursuant to h Carolina Code

Section 30-4-90(2)(4) .
grr:g ‘Board Policy BEDG. The Board majority
did not approve, disapprove, or otherwuste
act upon the contents of this attachment.



Tonight, we are faced with a decision on whether, or not, our policies matter. If they matter, we
must act. If they don’t matter, we might as well scrap all board policies for board members. If
they don’t matter, we send a message to staff and students that the board is above policy, but

they are not. If policies don’t matter, this board can’t act the next time a board member breaks
policy. The trust will be broken.

By Trustee Catherine Huddle

attachment __ ‘? / is included with
the minutes of the - -,

er
meeting, gt the reques
pdw
pursuant to South Carolina Code

Ann. Section 30-4-30(a)(4) _

and Board Policy BEDG. The Board ma%ortty
did not approve, disapprove, or otherw ste
act upon the contents of this attachment.



February 28,2022

The thing that | find most troubling about Ms. Hines conduct is the lack of personal responsibility for her
actions and total absence of regard for what her actions have done to the reputations of our board,
superintendent, and the district.

Her actions were as a single member of this board. According to Board Policy BB she knew or should
have known that she does not speak for the district or the board. She wrote letters to the governor and
the superintendent of education seeking “guidance” about a policy after disrespectfully questioning the
district superintendent to the point of just short of interrogation at the board meeting on January 24.
The letters were sent on district letterhead which Mrs. Hines signed as trustee. Her letters written on
February 4 were not copied to the rest of the members as Board Policy BEDGA requires.

Neither did Mrs. Hines request advice on the appropriateness of personally writing the state education
superintendent and the governor using district letterhead and her title. Is this legal? | don’t know. If so,
is it appropriate? Not to me. But it certainly begs the question why Mrs. Hines didn’t ask before acting.

In fact, a full accounting of her actions remained hidden until a private citizen sent an email on February
15. On February 15, eleven days after her initial action, Mrs. Hines provided a letter of response penned
on February 8 from State Superintendent Spearman. The letter included a scathing condemnation of our
district superintendent and board. The letter criticized us for a factually incorrect lack of action about an
item Mrs. Hines had concealed for 8 full days. As it turns out, Board Policy KEC in place for years is very
similar to the state’s recommended policy.

This board set up a committee to discuss items related to board policies. At the conclusion of each board
committee meeting, the chairs of each committee have asked members for future agenda items. Mrs.
Hines has attended committee meetings sparingly. There is no record of her asking any “guidance” at
any policy committee meeting or board meeting. Why did Mrs. Hines not make other board members
aware of her concerns before going to Superintendent Spearman? And, most troubling, what was the
point of going to the governor at all?

Mrs. Hines should at the very least, own up to what she has done, stop making excuses, live up to the
fact that any repercussions from this will be on her personally and not the board, apologize to all
involved and then pledge to unite the district in her future actions.

Life is an adventure. It does not have to be filled with negativity, gloom and doom.
Let’s finish this chapter and move forward.

@'
Respectfully sub /E}:’ed,
H 1 /

Ker‘neth B. Loveless, Trustee

Attachment 4 i' is inchﬂed with
the minutes of the - rdl A

meeting, ;:t ﬂe requz 2\’ Boaerember
pursuant South Carolina Code

Ann. Section 30-4-90(a)(4) rE—
and Board Policy BEDG. The Boa j

or otherwise
not approve, disapprove,
gg uponpthe contents of this attachment.



Comment for Feb 28th, 2022’s Full Board Meeting regarding agenda item pertaining to Censure
of Rebecca Blackburn-Hines:

It is fundamentally important for any organization to develop policy. Policies provide guidance,
consistency, accountability, efficiency, and clarity on how an organization operates.

Our board policy BBA Board Powers and Duties states that “The board is responsible for the
adoption of policy. The policies will be put in written form and continually re-evaluated in terms
of the changing needs and functions of public education.”

Board policy BCA Board Member Code of Ethics says that we as board members should
understand “that the basic function of a school board is policymaking.”

Therefore, each of us board members was elected by popular vote in our local elections to be
policymakers first and foremost.

When we have an issue that becomes important to us or important to the public, our first place
to look for confirmation of our procedure or for change, we must look to our policies first. We
must first make sure that our policies are being followed as they are written. If there needs to
be a change, then we must first look to change the policy, not direct the school district to
disregard the policy as individual board members.

The reason we have had to talk about this censure of one of our board members is because
one of us has lost their way and should be thanking our Superintendent Dr. Ross for following
our policy first and foremost. Instead, this board member has become upset about our policy
and has decided instead to slander our district's name and our Superintendent to get political
gain. She has decided to ignore our policies and board procedure and the basic ethics of
working on a school board.

Our board policy BA School Board Operational Goals says that one of our board goals is “to
govern the school system in accordance with board policy.”

We currently have a policy committee that meets once a month to talk about pressing issues
that need our immediate attention. This board member has never asked to have our policies
KEC and ILJ that deal with materials in our libraries to be brought before this committee to
discuss. She has decided to circumvent our main role as a board member to update policy to
get political gain.

If this board member truly wanted to make a difference in how our school district and our
Superintendent operates with inappropriate instructional resources, she would have started the
policy change process. Writing unofficial and secret letters behind the rest of the board's back
in order to accomplish a change is underhanded, illegal, unethical, and frankly, should end in

censure,
Attachment 3‘3 is included with
the minutes of the - bt
meeting, e st O rd en}be

pursuant t& SouthCarolina Code

Ann. Section 30-4-90(a)(4)

and Board Policy BEDG. The Board majority
did not approve, disapprove, or otherwise



| would like to remind all board members including myself, that we are here to ensure that the
school district's policies are being followed by the school district. These policies protect us as a
board and the will of the public. We have these policies to ensure that we have the ability to
locally direct education. We cannot circumvent these policies, but work together to change
them.

Dr. Ross, our new and current beloved Superintendent did and has continued to follow our
policy when it came to these inappropriate library books in our schools. The fault for these
books falls squarely on our shoulders as a board, since we are the policymaking body and it is
our responsibility to discuss and change these policies. | am in support of this censure to
remind each of us on this board, that our political aspirations are not as important as our job as
policymakers and that we should point the finger to ourselves to lay blame before we damage
reputations that can affect each of our beloved District 5 staff and students.

In light of pointing fingers at our ourselves, | would like to officially apologize for the mistakes
and unintended consequences of my own words that have been spoken or written that may
have damaged a reputation. My actions were my own and | realize that stating my opinions and
repeating rumors can be detrimental to individuals, schools, and ultimately the students in those
schools. We need to work together not tear each other down, and | apologize for my
insensitivity. | hope we can move forward, apologize where we need to, and change the policy
that has caused all of this discord.

Nikki Gardner
1 of 7 Trustees
School District 5 of Lexington & Richland Counties.

* % ig i ed with
Atcachment ___5_____: is mc'lud

the minutes of the
meeting, at jx

ina Code
pursuant to South Carol
| 30-4-90(2)(4) o
223 .Bosicrgogollcy BEDG. The Boa;tql magg:ty
erw!
id not approve, disapprove, or o
gg Sponcirr)\e contents of this attachment.

~st of Board grember
. o2



2/28/22, 11:06 AM Lexington/Richland School Dist. 5 Mail - Board of Trustees Letterhead

LPh |

OF LEXHGTON & Rebecca Hines <rhines@lexrich5.org>

Board of Trustees Letterhead
1 message

Erin Strange <estrange@lexrich5.org>
To: Erin Strange <estrange@lexrich5.org>
Bcc: d5-board-members@lexrich5.org

Thu, Jan 14, 2021 at 3:15 PM

Please be advised this email is being blind copied and shared with all members of the Board of
Trustees

Good afternoon -

Attached for your use as needed is a letterhead template with the Board of Trustees District logo.

Respectfully,
Erin

Erin Strange

Executive Administrative Assistant

Board of Trustees and Superintendent

School District Five of Lexington & Richland Counties
1020 Dutch Fork Road, Irmo, SC 29063

office: 803.476.8169

estrange@lexrich5.org

www.lexrich5.org

W¥3140

Pursuing Excellence for Tomorrow's Challenges

@ Board Letterhead 2021.doc
170K

Attachment *.?5 is included with

the minutes of the =R L
oard member
m , at the request e
pu nt to South Carolina Code
. Section 30-4-90(a)(4) n
g::; Board Policy BEDG. The Board majority

therwise
did not approve, disapprove, or 0
act upon the contents of this attachment.

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/3/?ik=886086724f&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1688894589149244066 &simpl=msg-{%3A16888945891... 1/1



2/28/22, 10:09 AM Lexington/Richland School Dist. 5 Mail - Ltr from Supt Spearman re: Concerns Regarding Obscenity in Schools

i
) I Rebecca Hines <rhines@lexrich5.org>

Ltr from Supt Spearman re: Concerns Regarding Obscenity in Schools

Rebecca Hines <rhines@lexrich5.org>

Tue, Feb 8, 2022 at 5:12 PM
To: Janis Hammond <jhammond@lexrich5.org>, Akil Ross <aross@lexrich5.org>

Chairwoman Hammond,

After the January 24th, 2022 meeting in which controversial books were discussed, | sent a letter (on my personal behalf,
not the behalf of the board) to Governor McMaster and Superintendent Spearman to ask for guidance and clarification as
to what constitutes "obscenity" in schools. The State Superintendent sent a response to me today. | have attached her
response and accompanying documents, and my original letter to this email for your review. Thank you.

Kind regards,
Rebecca Blackburn Hines
[Quoted text hidden]

7 attachments
@ Reconsideration of Library Media Center Materials Form.pdf
118K

ﬂ 2021-11-10 Gov. McMaster to Sup't Spearman re Inappropriate Materials in School Libraries.pdf
204K

-E Best Practices Model Policy for SBE Library Materials.pdf
= 114K

-D District and SBE Public Review Memo-Nov. 9 2021.pdf
= 138K

m Model Policy for Library Materials and Reconsideration Form Memo Jan. 25 2022.pdf
131K

@ RebeccaHinesResponseltr 2.8.22.pdf
73K

aj Letter to Gov. McMaster & Sup. Spearman_2.4.22.pdf
164K

Attachment ‘ is included with

the minutes of the e a r;e-'i-""r

m , at the re('q-a,s‘est : /Md.‘
pursdant to South Carolina Code

Section 30-4-90(a)(4) o
2:2 Board Policy BEDG. The Board ma}onty
did not approve, disapprove, or otherwise

act upon the contents of this attachment.

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/3/?ik=886086724f8&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-a%3Ar1978729135554786999&simpl=msg-a%3Ar19787291... 1/1



2/28/22, 10:10 AM Lexington/Richland School Dist. 5 Mail - Ltr fram Supt Spearman re: Concerns Regarding Obscenity in Schools

oF LEXWETON Rebecca Hines <rhines@lexrich5.org>

Traywnck Laurie <Itraywick@ed.sc.gov> Tue, Feb 8, 2022 at 4:.37 PM
To: Rebecca Hines <rhines@lexrich5.org>

Cc: "governormcmaster@governor.sc.gov" <governormcmaster@governar.sc.gov>

Ms. Hines,

Please find attached a letter from Superintendent Spearman regarding your concerns related to obscenity in schools.
There are additional attachments that include supporting documentation. Thank you.

Sincerely,
. . 'h‘? is 1cluded with
Laurie Traywick Attachment )
the mlnutes of the ‘ 3 - &
Office of the Superintendent e red 2 A ar

South Carolin

t to Sou
l,?:..nﬂ section 30~ 4'90(5)(4} poard majority

BEDG.

g b or otherw'nse
isa prove

dlgt ggto:pt?g’ ::a&ntg of this attachment.

a

SC Department of Education

From: Rebecca Hines <rhines@lexrich5.org>

Sent: Friday, February 4, 2022 1:45 PM

To: SC Superintendent; GovernorMcMaster@governor.sc.gov
Subject: Concerns Regarding Obscenity in Schools

Governor McMaster and Superintendent Spearman,

Please find attached correspondence regarding my concerns both as a Trustee and as a parent with the issue
of obscenity in public schools. I am aware of current board policies and state-level education policies
relating to library materials selection; however, I would appreciate your consideration in providing

specific guidance relating to obscene and explicit materials.

Kind regards,

Rebecca Blackburn Hines

Kind regards,

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/3/?ik=886086724f&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f%3A1724232479559880870&simpl=msg-f%3A17242324795... 1/2



2/28/22, 10:10 AM Lexington/Richland School Dist. 5 Mail - Ltr from Supt Spearman re: Concerns Regarding Obscenity in Schools

Rebecca Blackburn Hines

Board Trustee

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties

The information contained in this transmission is intended only for the use of the person(s) named above. If you are not
the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply email. The South Carolina Department of Education is neither
liable for the proper and complete transmission of the information contained in this communication nor for any delay in its

receipt. Communications to and from the South Carolina Department of Education are subject to the South Carolina
Freedom of Information Act, unless otherwise exempt by state or federal law.

6 attachments

ﬂ Reconsideration of Library Media Center Materials Form.pdf
— 118K

ﬂ 2021-11-10 Gov. McMaster to Sup't Spearman re Inappropriate Materials in School Libraries.pdf
204K

'ﬁ Best Practices Model Policy for SBE Library Materials.pdf
~ 114K

@ District and SBE Public Review Memo-Nov. 9 2021.pdf
— 133K

"ﬁ Model Policy for Library Materials and Reconsideration Form Memo Jan. 25 2022.pdf
= 131K

-@ RebeccaHinesResponseltr 2.8.22, pdf
73K

i oj' f is included with
Attachment o,

the minutes of the
g, the request

th Carolina Code
pu nt to Sou

Secti -4-90(2)(4) _
Arr:g 'Boardugol?gv BED(G The Board ma;o;lty
?ud not approve, disapprove, of Ot?w?—nrg:?t
act upon the contents of this attac ;

httos://mail.acoale.com/mail/u/3/7ik=886086724f&view=pt&search=all&permmsaid=msa-f%3A1724232479559880870&simpl=msa-f%3A17242324795... 2/2



February 4, 2022

The Honorable Henry McMaster
South Carolina State House ﬁf 6 dy with
1100 Gervais Street Ammnt__?:ﬂf—'—’?"

| . the minutes of th :
Columbia, South Carolina 29201 n e 2 2 o
pu nt to South Carolina Code

The Honorable Molly Spearman Ann. Section 30-4-382?)(;‘%3 Board majority
South Carolina Department of Education a"dga;g;gt? 3|§ap;5rove, or otherwlste
1429 Senate Strect g'gt upon the contents of this attachment.

Columbia, South Carolina 29201
Re:  Obscenity in Public Schools
Dear Governor McMaster and Superintendent Spearman:

At a recent school board meeting for School District 5 of Lexington and Richland Counties, several parents
spoke during public participation expressing concerns about library books containing sexually explicit and
obscene material. These parents read passages taken from books confirmed to be within District 5’s high school
libraries so offensive that our Superintendent asked the Board of Trustees to redact the audio before publishing
the meeting video online. In fact, the District disclosed to parents that YouTube would not allow the audio to be
published because it did not comply with their community guidelines for an educational entity in which
“sexually explicit language or narratives” is prohibited. Understandably, many parents have expressed their
frustration over the contradictions between allowing obscene material in school libraries that are not allowed to
be presented at school board meetings.

In a recent local media article, our Superintendent asserted the books in question were appropriately allowed to
remain in our school libraries pursuant to U.S. Supreme Court case, Island Trees School District v. Pico. The
Pico case held that local school boards may not remove books from school libraries because they simply
“dislike the ideas contained in those books.” However, the case also recognized that school boards could
remove books that were “pervasively vulgar” or lacked “‘educational suitability.” This ambiguity has raised
questions about what constitutes “obscenity” within the resources provided in our public schools.

As one Board Trustee for School District 5 of Lexington and Richland Counties, and as a parent of two
clementary school students, I am asking for your guidance on this issue at a state level. I am not in favor of
“banning books” soley due to moral or political differences and other matters of opinion, because it is
imperative that we encourage a student’s ability to develop critical thinking skills. Literacy proficiency is a
crucial area of need in our public schools; our students need access to a variety of literary resources.
Nevertheless, parents strongly believe that materials containing obscenity require a different standard. As such,

www.lexrichb.org
1020 Dutch Fork Road - Irmo, South Carolina 29063 - (803) 476-8000
“Pursuing Excellence for Tomorrow’s Challenges”



I am asking for you to provide guidance and clarification on these issues mentioned above so that parents,
teachers and administrators can resolve this conflict and move forward with educating the students in South
Carolina.

Thank you for your consideration.

In Service to the District 5 Community,
/s Rebecca Blackburnn Hines

Rebecca Blackburn Hines
Board Trustee

www.lexrichS.org
1020 Dutch Fork Road - Irmo, South Garalina 29063 - (803) 476-8000
“Pursuing Excellence for Tomorrow’s Challenges”



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

MoLLY M. SPEARMAN
STATE SUPERINTENDENT OF IEDUCATION

February 8, 2022

Ms. Rebecca Blackburn Hines o2 e O ks
pe oY ke

Board of Trustees Member f*\‘;ﬁ“"‘i o

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties 635;090“

1020 Dutch Fork Road

Irmo, SC 29063
Dear Ms. Blackburn IHines:

Thank you for your service on School District 5 of Lexington and Richland Counties (District
Five) Board of Trustees and your advocacy as both a parent and a board member on educational
issues in your community and our state.

On November 4, 2021, district superintendents, including the District Five interim
superintendent, attended a statewide meeting where the topic of library materials was discussed.
Specifically, a book that would become the subject of a widely publicized November 10, 2021
letter from Governor McMaster was brought to the attention of every district. I asked each
district to review their library materials and ensure that the book in question was not on their
shelves. This 1s the same book that [ have come to understand was brought up by concerned
parents in the January 24, 2022 District Five School Board meeting.

In a November 9, 2021 memorandum, I again requested “each district to review their own
purchased texts including those used in classrooms, libraries, and media centers to ensure they
arc age and content appropriate”.

At the request of Governor McMaster and at the direction of the State Board of Education, the
South Carolina Department of Education (SCDE) developed and the State Board of Education
adopted a “Model Policy for Library/Media Center Materials Selection and Reconsideration
Process™ and “Reconsideration of Library/Media Center Materials Form”. The model policy and

RUTLEDGE BUILDING - 1429 SENATE STREET * COLUMBIA, SC 29201
PHONE: 803-734-8500 - FAX: 803-734-3389 * ED.SC.GOV



Ms. Blackburn Hines
Page 2
February 8, 2022

form were created with the input of parents, school and district administrators, and
representatives from the South Carolina Association of School Librarians. On January 25, 2022,
the policy and form were distributed statewide to district superintendents, district supervisors of
library services, school librarians, and school board members.

Ultimately, local school boards are responsible for vetting, adopting, and financing local library
materials. School boards and the school and district personnel they charge with overseeing this
process must be deliberate and comprehensive in deciding which materials are appropriate for
the students they serve. Local leaders should not rely solely on publishers or clearinghouses to
make selections for them.

Once proper vetting has taken place and materials are purchased and placed on shelves, students,
parents, and community members must have a transparent process and procedure for the review
and removal they believe to be educationally unsuitable. The model policy and form developed
by the SCDE provide this without interfering with state and federal laws so long as the books are
being challenged and subsequentially removed for a nondiscriminatory reason.

Based on the timeline of events and the information provided to districts, it is clear District
Five’s Board and administration failed to do its job by properly vetting the obscene materials in
question even after the state very publicly encouraged them to do so. I again strongly recommend

your district to adopt and follow the model policy, remove the inappropriate texts, and ensure
that students in your community are no longer subjected to obscene and pornographic depictions.

Sincerely,

Molly M. Spearman
State Superintendent of Education

Enclosures

phone: 803-734-8500 e fax: 803-734-3389 e ed.sc.gov



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

MoLLY M. SPEARMAN
STATE SUPERINTENDENT OF EDUCATION

MEMORANDUM

B . -'#.33 is included with
TO: District Superintendents Attachment 2, ncgced W
the minutes of the

State Board of Education m , at the request of iard membergas/,
District Instructional Materials Coordinators SRt 5 South caralina Code

Ann. Section 30-4-90(a)(4)

4 d Board Policy BEDG. The Board majority
FROM: Molly M. Spearman . ane i approve, disapprove, or otherwise
State Superintendent of Education act upon the contents of this attachment.
DATE: November 9, 2021
RE: Virtual Public Review for Instructional Materials

The Instructional Materials Review Panels have finalized their instructional materials
recommendations for the 2021 adoption cycle. The student editions of each of the recommended
programs will be on display from November 9 through December 9, 2021, at 15 review locations
across the state and available virtually using publisher-provided links. A report of the Review
Panel recommendations with citizen comments from the public review will be submitted to the
State Board of Education on December 14, 2021. Upon approval of the panel recommendations,
districts and schools will receive notification of the newly adopted materials.

We would like to invite you and members of your district and community to participate in the
public review. The following press release provides the link to the South Carolina Department of
Education’s website to access information on the virtual public review. Please assist us by
distributing this information to appropriate persons in your district and schools.

This is a fitting time for each district to review their own purchased texts including those used in
classrooms, libraries, and media centers to ensure they are age and content appropriate. Schools
and districts should not rely solely on publishers’ vetting. We must work alongside students,
families, and educators for this process to be successful.

RUTLEDGE BUILDING - 1429 SENATE STREET - COLUMBIA, SC 29201
PHONE: 803-734-8500 - FAX 803-734-3389 - ED.SC.GOV



HENRY MCMASTER
GOVERNOR

November 10, 2021

The Honorable Molly Spearman
Superintendent of Education

South Carolina Department of Education
1429 Senate Street

Columbia, South Carolina 29201

Dear Superintendent Spearman:

It has come to my attention that public schools in South Carolina may be providing students
with access—whether in school libraries, electronic databases, or both—to completely
inappropriate books and materials, including sexually explicit and obscene images or depictions.
After learning of this issue from understandably outraged parents and reviewing the examples
provided of such obscene and pornographic depictions, I was shocked and disappointed. Although
my staff previously contacted the Department of Education regarding this issue, I write to bring
this matter to your immediate attention and to request both a comprehensive investigation and a
detailed explanation of how these materials were allowed to be introduced in our State’s schools.

By way of example, it is my understanding that concerned parents were recently required
to petition the Fort Mill School District to remove a book from a school’s physical or digital library,
titled Gender Queer: A Memoir, by Maia Kobabe. If school personnel had performed even a
cursory review in this particular instance, it would have revealed that the book contains sexually
explicit and pornographic depictions, which easily meet or exceed the statutory definition of
obscenity. Thus, I am concerned that further examination may identify additional instances in
which inappropriate materials have been introduced into our State’s public schools.

For sexually explicit materials of this nature to have ever been introduced or allowed in
South Carolina’s schools, it is obvious that there is or was either a lack of, or a breakdown in, any
existing oversight processes or the absence of appropriate screening standards. Therefore, I
respectfully request that the Department of Education promptly investigate this matter, on a
statewide basis, and identify whether any systemic policy or procedural deficiencies exist at the
state or local levels, or both. Upon completion of this investigation, pursuant to article IV, section
17 of the South Carolina Constitution and sections 1-1-840 and 1-3-10 of the South Carolina Code
of Laws, please provide me with a detailed explanation of how such materials were allowed to be

StatE House ¢ 1100 GErvals STREET * CoLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA 29201 « TeLEPHONE: 803-734-2100



The Honorable Molly Spearman
Page 2
November 10, 2021

introduced into our State’s schools and what measures the Department of Education intends to take
to address this matter.

In the interim, I call on the Department of Education or the State Board of Education, as
appropriate, to promulgate statewide standards and directives to prevent pornography and other
obscene content from entering our State’s public schools and libraries and to identify any such
materials that may already be available to children. Additionally, the Department of Education
should develop—or, if existing, obviously improve upon—a transparent statewide process and
procedure to review and approve the books and other materials that are available to students. In
doing so, the Department of Education should also advise parents of this process and ensure that
they, as well as the public at large, have a formal mechanism by which to notify the Department
of Education and local school districts in the event they identify obscene or otherwise inappropriate
material in schools or school libraries.

I trust you agree that pornography and obscenity have no place in our State’s public
schools, much less in their libraries. Aside from being deeply disturbing and manifestly
inappropriate, it is likely illegal under South Carolina law. Accordingly, by copy of this letter, I
am notifying the South Carolina Law Enforcement Division of this matter for further evaluation.

Thank you in advance for your prompt attention to this important matter. I look forward
to hearing from you.

Yours very truly,
Henry McMaster

cc: Chief Mark Keel
South Carolina Law Enforcement Division




STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

MoLLY M. SPEARMAN
STATE SUPERINTENDENT OF IEDUCATION

MEMORANDUM
TO: District Superintendents Attachmentzé?é is included with
District Supervisors of Library Services the minutes of the __ep = 2P~ Rudmr

. . m at ¥
School Librarians g ge request of Ez,—d mezbe@ﬁ J
School Board Members pursuént to South Carolina Code
Ann. Section 30-4-90(a)(4)

- . a_nd Board Policy BEDG. The Board majority
FROM: Katie Nllges did not approve, disapprove, or otherwise

i ; actu the content i
Director, Office of Governmental Affairs pon s of this attachment.

DATE: January 25, 2022

RE: Model Policy for Library/Media Center Materials and Reconsideration Process

The purpose of this memorandum is to inform districts of the recent model policy adopted by the
State Board of Education (SBE) on January 11, 2022, regarding the selection and reconsideration

of library materials.

Districts are encouraged to use the Best Practices Model Policy for SBE Library Materials
adopted by the SBE to review current policies and amend accordingly. Additionally, districts
shall consider adopting the Reconsideration of Library Media Center Materials Form for use
when a material is challenged.

For questions, please contact Katic Nilges, Director of Governmental Affairs at
Knilges@ed.sc.gov.

RUTLEDGE BUILDING - 1429 SENATE STREET - COLUMBIA, SC 29201
PHONE: 803-734-8500 - FAX: 803-734-3389 - ED.SC.GOV



Model Policy for Library/Media Center Materials Selection and Reconsideration Process

Purpose.

To establish the local board’s direction for selection and use of library/media center materials
and the basic structure of handling questioned or challenged library/media center materials.

Role of the School Library/Media Center Professionals.

The function of the school library/media center is to support and enrich the instructional program
and recreational reading needs of the school and must provide a broad range of materials.

The local board has the legal responsibility for the approval of all instructional materials. The
selection and ordering of library books, audiovisuals, electronic resources, and other materials
for the library/media centers are the responsibility of the school librarian in accordance with this

adopted policy.

The school librarian will identify, order and organize materials that will implement, enrich and
support the educational program of the school district. Principals, teachers, supervisors, students,
and members of the community may give suggestions, recommendations and other assistance.

Materials Selection Criteria.

Materials should be consistent with the district’s general educational goals and the educationa? o

goals and objectives of each individual school. Consideration should be given for purchase bas: ‘ :%E. @

on the work as a whole and on the basis of the following: _§ 2 E

£ 2 =

1. educational significance; % S % s
2. appropriateness for students in each school, such as grade and age level; ‘ G g :
3. needs of the school and value to the collection; N/ ? g E‘
4. reputation and significance of author and producer; '\) :. 38 iy
5. clarity, adequacy, and scope of text; * j 23 &‘E
6. validity, accuracy, objectivity, currency, and appropriateness of text; £ & £
7. organization and presentation of contents; E Zg §E R
8. high degree of readability and/or comprehensibility; gg NS :§ gs
9. high artistic quality and/or literary style; and <5 g g 2y
10. value commensurate with cost.

The school librarian shall use their professional training and expertise to evaluate the existing
collection and consult reputable, unbiased, professionally prepared selection aides when
selecting materials for the library/media centers.

Procedures for Handling Questioned or Challenged Library/Media Center Materials.

Any individual residing within the attendance area of the school district or who has a child who
attends a school in the school district may lodge a complaint against any material used in the



school library/media center within the district. Prior to lodging the complaint, the complainant
shall read the material in full. A student who objects to or finds offensive any material located in
the library/media center should be provided alternatives. If the complaint cannot be resolved
satisfactorily during an informal conference with the principal and school librarian or teacher
concerned, then the following procedure will be used:

A materials challenge shall be filed by completing and returning to the principal of the school in
which the material is being used a form entitled "Reconsideration of Library/Media Center

wow =
Materials Form”. (See attached for sample form.) A separate form must be completed for eachf;' a3 52 g &
material being requested for reconsideration. This form shall be attached to this policy, posted § é g E 2 3
prominently on the district website, and available upon request at schools. %% %g; é
QSELYR T
To evaluate the challenged resource(s), the Superintendent shall annually appoint a review ggov;‘;‘: f 5 ;‘: %
committee composed of an odd number of individuals. Depending on the membership size of ﬂlﬁ § 88 €
district, there may be a school level and/or district level committee established. An example of 3 2 g- 5‘
an appropriate composition for the committee(s) is the following: 5o ,.3"3 é o
]
The district supervisor of library media services (if applicable); g% § :
At least one school library media specialist within the district/school, 3 i3
At least one teacher within the district/school; T8 g

At least one parent representing a school family other than complainant;
At least one principal within the district/school; and
At least one member of a School Improvement Council within the district/school. \

[ WU T N 'S T NS =

Members of the committee shall read the materials referred to them in its entirety. Pending
review by the committee, the challenged books or materials shall be withdrawn for use

throughout the district.

The committee shall complete its review and issue a report within fifteen (15) business days after
receipt of the complaint. A copy in writing shall be sent to the complainant, the district
Superintendent, and the local board.

If the materials are deemed to be inappropriate, the district must ensure no other copies exist in
circulation within the district for the school level(s) in which it is found to be inappropriate. If
the materials are deemed to be acceptable and appropriate, the district must immediately place
such materials back into circulation.

The local board shall be responsible for determining an appeals process. Such process shall not
extend longer than 15 business days, effective from the date the appeal is requested.

The committee's decision, and if applicable, the local board's review, regarding the
appropriateness of a book or reading material cannot be challenged again until the expiration of

five years from the original challenge date.

Local board policies shall list all relevant policies connected to library/media centers to this
policy. Local boards shall periodically review and update this policy.



Reconsideration of Library/Media Center Materials Form

School in which the material is being used:

Your Name (please print and sign):

Date:

Do you currently reside within the attendance area of the school district? (Yes/No)

Telephone #:

Address:

Do you have a student who attends the school listed above? (Yes/No)

Please check the type of material in question:

— Book — Video — Kit
— Magazine — Audio — Other
— Pamphlet — Software

Title of material:

Author/Distributor:

Copyright Year:

The following questions are to be answered after the complainant has read, viewed, or listened
to the matertal. If sufficient space is not provided, attach additional sheets. (Please sign your
name to each additional attachment.)

Did you read, view, or listen to the material in its entirety? If not, why?

=

2. Are students required to use the material? (Yes/No/Unsure)

3. Have you read reviews of this material by reputable sources? If so, please list sources.

4. To what do you object? (Please be specific. Cite pages or particular sequences of material.)

dwith

LAda-Ra

- "

uawiyoele syl Jo 51U23U0D a2yl uodm 1JE
2SIMIBLI0 10 "SRUIUUESHY anoiddpgou pip

purs'ui - di a =
Ann. S&ﬁo“ 30"4'90(3)(4) - apo ) EUHG 5 T

a |d ma'd FO”CY BEDG- e Boa s JEWQ"I‘J aql je ﬁmmu-l
d‘d “Ot BpPIOve, d!'iapp Dve, ofr Oti erwise Jaqwa‘m p

act upon the contents of thls attachment. L popAUL o



What do you believe is the theme or purpose of this material?

What do you feel might be the result of a student using this material?

Would you recommend this material for a different age group? If so, which age group?

What other materials of the same subject and format would you recommend?

What is your request in regard to this material?

Do not assign/lend this material to my student
« Refer to an official committee to re-evaluate material for use by all students

-
pu nt to South Carelina Code
Ann. Section 30-4-90(a)(4)
and Board Policy BEDG. The Board majority
did not approve, disapprove, or otherwise
act upon the contents of this attachment.



2/28/22, 9:27 AM

IMEN'S HOCK

—

Image-1.jpg

In today's paper
SPORTS: USC baseball
pitching coach
Justin Parker is a
‘superstar in the
making. 18

LI |
STy (Omv(m\ THISTATEOW

ACEBODK COM THESTATEREAS.
IUITIII COMTHISTATE

be

KEFHNG YO
(OMECTEL

I SUNDAY FEBRUARY 20 022

State

$199

SC could see major investment

in electric car industry

Mgl the il m

The elecrric car industey Is
st o take off in 2022,
South Carolina get a picce of
the manufacturing pie?
According to experts, South

Caroling is # prme camndidate to

see investnent for muking
cither eleciric cars ar the bat
teries that power them,

T some ways, ¢

, but will

ctric vehiche
and baitery manufacturers aie

alieady coming 10 South ¢
alina, I Devember, Proterra
announced a $76 million in
westment in sn electng vehicle
battery peaduction plant In
Cireer, BMW hay already
promised 10 build clectric
vebicles in its Sonth Carolisna
plunt in Greer, according w
Vorbes. Volvn, which bas 1
manulacturing facility in Berke-
ley Conn ) plans 1o pro-
duce an all-clectric SUV in
South Carolina, acconding to
CHBE

1t's possible even more ¢lecs
tric vehicle or battery compa-
nies could he coming 1o the
Palnweta State, The markes (or
ehectric cavs ls growing laster
than companies can prodice
the batteries, said Bemard
i of the Center for Autn:
motive Research, an interna-
tional, non-proli growp that
e

seeks to boost the conpel

nowk of the U8, aunmmonive

industry,
hts

it ot i Janied vush, ™

Last month, Vietnaimese cae
m.ll:ur\’mlA ol Rerers it
e and
build batterie
. The comip:
CEOD 1okl Reuters it iy
Towed down its U
1o three possible places, b mJ
not ndme the locations,

s uncleur whether more
investment in electric vehicle or
s corald e in South
near fulure. 8.C.

SEE ELECTRIC CAR, 114

Spearman:
LRS didn’t ‘'do
its job’ on
banned book

BV KKISTOW MARCHANT
s

bt st

_ Sunth Carolina’s state edica-
. dent said a local
sehual district “failed 10 o ity
job™ after the Department of
Fducation warned schools earil
er this schoel year o check foe
certain eontroversial ks on
libvary shelves,
Superiniendent Molly Spear-
man gave that assessment in
Tespore 10 fetier from i Lox-

e —

A

N7
T

A
__(.‘

v

Two chicken strip sandwiches, both made at Hooters. but one marketed under the Hootie's Chicken Tenders brand on delivery apps. While
Both items ook wery sinilan the sandwich from Hootie's Chicken Tenders was $769 and the sandwich from Hooter's was $15.7)

Your delivery app order might
come from a ‘ghost kitchen’

HY SARMIELLI
seilisid st ate com

COLUMBIA, 8.0

Tender Shack, a matlonal
“ar T
rant beand, announced |
it was expanding debyery 1o

more than a dozen cities across

South Carolina, inchding
Colu
“dung goed chicken”

-
fall

actually are cooked inside
Ouiback Steakhouse restiu-
ran
Sunilarly, some folks who
sl delivery apps in
ia and Lexington
areas have besn surprised
learn thetr MrBeast Busger
arders are comiig oul of a Ruby

thinking about Pasqually’s
Pizza for dinner? Yini meal
womiing fvm Chuck E. Cheese

like these are papping up on
Toond delivery apps in amd

around Columbia. They've left

suenie delivery customers feel-
ing duped or, at the very leass,
vonfused about where thelr

food is coming from, as a rising
st kitehe

concept know s “y
ens” trickles dows tw the Jocal

i kitehen crimsovers

DA WATCHER Joind b st e

ket
In some cases, independent
comnpanies are joining forees 1o
ceank meals out of one kitchen
s Tanesel thern theough the
delivery app pigeline. In other
Cutstes, AU laE COMpAnIES are

the kitchens in their alecady
well-known restaurants, Bl in
almest every case, these ghast

SEE GHOST KITCHEN, TA

¢hland 5
sehaol boand % Y.‘
memberasking @0
for guidince on . -
handling conzro- | %
versul biuks that £

include (u\ull;
explicit mat
‘The books ha
drawn compl
from some paz-
e,

Motly
Speatman

poarman notes in her Feb, 8
letter that Ber dep il
warmed school districis to check
specilic hoks
ler concerns
raisst by Gov. Henry
McMaster and others ubout
ks he povernor o ‘.u:.l b

letter 1o ensure books i\l
public schools were age appro-
prelare and educationally o

I

ic

library bioks on |lu~lt ~hrhr\
Soutke of those same books weie
brought up by parents at i Jan.

eting of the Lexington-
Richilamd 3 school boand whi
had found them in district i
braries,

“Based on the timeline of
events and the infermation
provided 1o distrdes, itis clear
Pistrict Five's Board and admin:
istration failed w do its job by
properly veiting the obacene
materials in question even after
the state very ;mhlld\ e
aged them todo so,”
sail leter, *1
strongly recommend y
et to adopt and follow the
madel policy, temave the fnap-
propriate fexts, and ensure st
students in vour communiry are
iy fonyer subjected o ohacein
and pornographie depictions.”

Lexington-Richkind 5 said
they don't accept Spearman’s
asgessineid of the siluation

“The School District
Boartd of Trustees amd §
wemdent Akl £, Ross, Se. dis-
agree with the allega
sented in g letter from State

SEE SPEARMAN, 5A

@v Subsrders get S0 etz pages e i our dady digital efdiien &
one tme activalion is the key. 5can Uie code ot eft with the amers
o your wakile phone or g0 1o thestale. comdigialaccess.

HILTON

HEAD

| CustameR
| strwice

| B00-883 3564

WINE&FOOD

ESTIVA

o Publix

HILTON

i -

HI:J«L’WINEAI’JOFDOD

Were commitied b pravdng Ihe
essertial jourtsm you recd. Fird
the content iImparLant ta yew Mmde

COM

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ogbl#inbox/FMfcgzGmvBwbF JZIPDjXTvQvzKPgNWQb?projector=1&messagePartld=0.1

ise

Board majorfty

or otherw

he

T

DG. T

i

B

icy

at the request of
pursuant te Scuth Carclina Code
act upon the contents of this attachment.

Ann. Section 30-4-90(a)(4)

and Board Pol

did not approve, disapprove,

the minutes of the

meeati

Attachment



2/28/22, 9:28 AM

Image-1.jpg

SUNDNY FEBRUARY 20 102

FROM PAGE 1A

SPEARMAN

Superintendent Molly
Sy mein,” the disingt
said in a starement. “We
Ik furwarnd 1o working
with Superintendent
Spearmian 1o ensure she iy
clear chat there was no
Falfure o ihe pars of vur
board of supe
The books s
Iricts were w
included “Gy
A Memolr™ by Mai,
Futrabe, amd “All
Aren't Hlue” by G
[obmson, Both books take
the fonm of personal com:
ing-0i-age memoirs by
LGHTQr authors that
Trankly disenss aod depict
sexual experiences, and
which have been
lenged in school dis
arowmd the counry,
Borth of those buoks
were referenced by Lex-
ington-Kichland 5 purente
i thetr complaints o the
sehael board, said educas
Hen department spoke
Ryan Brown,
peariman’s ketter wis
i A FEAOIISE (0 U
letter from board tiember
Rebevea Blackburn Hines
asking lor guidance nn

responding to parcnis’
comnplaints. When the

chool board meet
our Supe
(AKIT Koss) asked the
Toand o Trustees 1o re
duct the audio before
publising e mesting
video onling,” Hines
wrile,
"Understandably, many
parents have expressed
thelr frustration over the
contradictions between
allowing obscene marerial
sckool libraries that are
not allowed 6o be present-
wd at school boand ineet-
ings,” Hines suid,
s relerencet cone
s ubout o federal Su.
e Court precedent
imits & school dis-
frict’s ability to remaove
hooks from the lib
District Super

ry.
et

Akil Ross addiessed the
inkue separately ih a col-
uma for the New o
News,

"Fhe graphic sexual
content cansed e to ask
the boek to be pulled, but
WS 1R, 1 W o s
posed to be," Ross wrote,
“The Sugrens Courl de-
wided in 1982, in the
slandd Trees Schaool
District v, Pico case, that
local sehool bounls may
not remove books feom
school libraties simply
because they di the
Ideas eomained in the
buok,

“However, books can be
removed when rwo review
conunitices review the
book st determine it is
not educationally suitabke

udents,”

Thye state Fdueat
Department doesn't be-
Beve that precedent stops
schaols from dropping
obwenne or inappropriate
mraterial.

I you badd Hillary Clin-
ton's autoblograply in the
anal i school baand

£y VOU €0 T remove
Usal,” Brown saidd. “You
an'ticmove i book fur
having LGITY themes.
Bt a school bourd can

Hove aliscu e Hiate-

State education officials
made the policy clear atits
Nivenber meeting with
district officials. "Other

books," Brown sakd.

The department’s rec-
emmended policy in-
cludes the sieps needad to
remove a challenged
bawnk, including the form it
recommends using 1o
cormplain about Hbary
iems

It menls the
superintendent annually
apgoint @ comenittee o
evaluate challenged mate-
rial. The commitiee

shoull inchude: a lbrary
specialist, teacher, princi-
pal and a parent oiher
thun the one making the
complaint, according to
the department’s recom-
mendations, Departinent
guidclines say & book can
be removeed from clreula-
tiom pending the commit-
tee's review,
Leaingron-Richland 5
el Hhaat e olkowws 3 siimi-
lar policy to the depart-
menl’'s recommendation.
But despite parents’ public
compliints at sehool
board meetings, the dis
trict has ol Teceivend o
formal comphainn about
the books uvailabhe
ravies, so 1o books

anather letter on depart-
ment policies.

“This s a fitting time
Tor each distnet o review
their own purchased fexts
inclinling those wed n
<lasssooms, librackes, and
media centers (o ensure
they are age and cont
appropriate,” Spe
saldd ina follow -y
letter ta disines superin:
terdents. “Schools and
districts should not rely
solely on publishers’ vet-
ting, We twirk along-
stde students, families,
amid edueatons for this
process 1o be suceessiul,”

The controversy arousd
school library books
comes ay disincts derosy.
ihe vountry are dealing
with complaints about
what materials ave and
aren'l appropoiate to teach
in schools, Perhaps the
most maliomal attentio
has gone 1o a Tennessec
school distrit's decision
to ban “Maus,” the Fulicz-
er Prive-winnimg gruphic
novel ubout athor Art
Splegehnan's family's
experience during the
Huolocaust hecause the
bouk includes profunity
andd a depiction of midity.

Marchant:
771-8405,
whiristowallmme

1 THE STATC

KOHLER. Walk-In Bath

IT'S MORE THAN JUST A BATH.

(&) THIS MONTH ONLY

50% OFF

Professional Walk-In Bath Installation’
SPECIAL FINANCING OFFER

R
LI FULANCING AVA

No Payments for 18 MONTHS®

ity

jort

ma,

Call today for your FREE in-hame quote!

() (803) 881-9564

hment.

or otherwise

h Carolina Code

-4-30(a)(4)

icy BEDG. The Board
ve

did not appro
act upon the co

-
L

ntents of this attac

, disapprove,

s
of the

Id for by the US. Department
I Health and Human Services. '

d, af the request

Attachment
the minutes
Ann. Section 30

and Board Pol

pursuant o Sou

Nothing is more important
than keeping your child safe.

Early in the pandemic, COVID pos the biggest risk to adults.
But in January, there were over 2 million COVID casi

as your child is old enough, protect them with a safe

COVID vaccine. If you have que ns, talk to a doctor today.

Find vaccines near you at vaccines.gov

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ogbli#inbox/FMfcgzGmyvBwbF JZIVKjIKQgjsDXXVWxM?projector=1&messagePartld=0.1



2/28/22, 9:24 AM Lexington/Richland School Dist. 5 Mail - Sociclogy Book Concerns

o/ Y

Rebecca Hines <rhines@lexrich5.org>

Sociology Book Concerns
2 messages

Rebecca Hines <rhines@lexrich5.org> Fri, Nov 12, 2021 at 11:38 AM
To: Akil Ross <aross@lexrich5.org>

Dr. Ross,

| have had several constituents reach out to me concerned about a book that was apparently approved by the SC Dept.
of Education for Sociology grades 9-12 entitled "The Real World" 7th Edition, by W.W. Norton & Company, Inc.

The information in this book is entirely inappropriate. Can you confirm that it is not currently being used in District 5?
Thank you!

Kind regards,
Rebecca

Kind regards,

Rebecca Blackburn Hines

Board Trustee

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties

Akil Ross <aross@lexrich5.org> Sun, Nov 14, 2021 at 9:40 AM
To: Rebecca Hines <rhines@lexrich5.org>

We do not use that text.

We use Sociology, The Study of Human Relationships from Holt McDougal

[Quoted text hidden]

Dr. Akil E. Ross, Sr.
Interim Superintendent
District 5 of Lexington & Richland Counties

pu nt to South Carmmi)Code
Section 30-4-90(2)( -
2:2 .Board Policy BEDG. T hee m;: er?\i{ggty
approve, disapprove, :
gi; E?Jtonﬁ:‘l')\e contents of this attachment

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/3/?ik=8860867 24f&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-a%3Ar3546631382900491798&simpl=msg-a%3Ar678697888... 1/1



2/28/22, 9:34 AM IMG_0501.PNG

3:37 il 5Ge @@ )

04 a'*-h Rebecca Blackburn Hines
e Jan 14,2021 - Q&

from Rep. Chip Huggins and Rep. Nathan Ballentine
that legislation to reinstate step increases made it
through the Ways & Means Committee today and is
headed to the full House of Representatives. |
encourage everyone to continue to reach out to your
legislators to express how important this legislation is
for our teachers. | know | will.

’\~ i Hu « Fibusution Commities Chairmn
{ la ) o Vi dhacation & Fobic W otks Chsitmttian

st 2

The Hameable Chip |

o) Like (J) Comment > Share

QO Mike Blackburn and 84 others
2 Shares

View previous comments...

L$ Jan Hammond
'
;

True &

-k

1y Like Reply ‘I@

Write a comment... @
W & & @

Home Watch Groups News Notifications Menu

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ogbl#inbox/FMfcgzGmvLMFLmMFwkQgJCagxLpmBXDGjx?projector=1&messagePartld=0.1

111



2/28/22,9:33 AM IMG_0502.PNG

hin Hilaaine ' andl

Q59 Q26
Merideth Wyndham Stra...

95 mutual friends

@ Message

Lindsey Dupree Hilton

: (~ Message
55 mutual friends

Amy V. Cofield

Message
37 mutual friends @ -

Catherine Ging Huddle

Message
95 mutual friends @ g

Ann Altman Morris

; (~) Message
23 mutual friends

Brittany Wilson

i @ Message
56 mutual friends

Linda Byars

. @ Message
15 mutual friends

Matt Orr

. (™) Message
50 mutual friends

Cille McCracken-LeGrand

; @ Message
7 mutual friends

Lindsay Bourke Agostini

: @ Message
28 mutual friends

Laura Frey Smith

(™ Message
87 MUt U —

https:/fmail.google.com/mail/u/0/? ogbl#inbox/FMfcgzGmvLMFLmFwdrskbQbCxXZhtzMM?projector=1&messagePartld=0.1



2/28/22, 9:34 AM

IMG_0499.jpg

& __ Rebecca Blackburn Hines

Jan 14, 2021 - &

The reality is that we need our kids in school. We
need to be able to effectively and safely staff our
schools. We need consistency. Our educators need
access to the vaccine, should they desire. | have
heard (from reliable sources) that there are those
that do not believe teachers and support staff should
be a priority for vaccinations und... See More

©op e/

Junuary 14™, 2021

The Honorable Henry MeMuster
South Caroling State House
1100 Gervais Street

Columbia, South Carolina 29201

W, Marshall Taylor, Jr.

S.C. Department of Heslth and Emvironmental Controt
2614 Bull Street

Columbia, South Carolina 29201

Re: Phase Th - Priority for Edueator & Education Support Stall’ Vaccmations

Dear Govemor McMaster snd Diseetor Taylor

As you are well aware, it is eritical 1o the educational suceess of the students in South Careling that our public
schools ane able tw properly operate on a (ull five-day face W fuce schedule inevery school distner, To this

point, the Centers for Disense Control's Preveation Adv isory Commillee on Immunization Practices and Suuth
Carolina’s COVID:19 Vaccine Commitiee have identified educators and education support stafl as frontline

essential workers eligible to receive the COVID-19 vaceine in Phase 1h of the yaccination distribution schedule.

1 woild ask that you prioritize the vaccination of educators and support staff at the beginning of Phase 1h and
wark with the South Caraling Department of’ Education and our school districts to swiltly and efliciently carry
ot the yaceination process as soon as possible.

As & Board Trustee Tor School District 3 of Lexington and Richland Counties, [ have observed first-hand how
difficult it can be 1o maintain operations of u school when educaturs and support stall’are unaveilable dus to
positive cases and quarantines related W COVID-19. This disruption 10 instructional models is negatively
impacting our sidents and causing upheaval in our community. With the hope of w vaccing that priontizes
accessibility 1o our essential school personnel, we may alleviste some of the compounding tociars caused by
thic virs and retum 1o 8 more consistent schedule fur our students, siafl and community.

OO0 s5
[ﬂ) Like

(J Comment

Via Electionic Mail

The Hunorable Greg Hembree, Senate Education Committee Chaimman

The Hunorable Rita Allison, House Fducation & Public Works Chairwoman
The Honorable Ronnie Cromer, Senate District 1§ y

The Honorable Richard A, Harpootlian, Senate Districe 20 4 }
The Honorable Nathan Balleming, House District 71 ‘i
The Honorable Chip Hugging, House District 835

25 Comments 2 Shares

ﬁ) Share

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ogbl#inbox/FMfcgzGmvLMFLmMGGsXSdbMHxrjJLcKTg?projector=1&messagePartld=0.1 11



2/28/22, 9:34 AM IMG_0500.PNG

3:37 il 56 @)
< @ Rebecca Blackburn Hines "
Jan 14, 2021 - Q

ASAP would be a positive step towards
more stability for our students and
educators!

1y Like Reply 10

@ Ashlyn Marie
«™”  You're the best!
1y Like Reply

Allison Gasque Parler
Thank you for working so diligently for our
teachers and students!

1Ty Like Reply

@ Jondy Loveless
® | know Ken has been in contact with Ronnie

Cromer, Nathan Ballentine, Katrina Shealy
and others.

1y Like Reply

. m Lisa Li Moye

4® Teachers are saying the overcrowding &
the miscalculation of students to teachers
to what is unbearable right now. One
teacher told me they calculate admin,
support staff, janitor as part of the student/
teacher ratio.

1y Like Reply

Write a comment... @
O g O

Home Watch Groups News Notifications Menu

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ogbl#inbox/FMfcgzGmvLMFLMGGIrKbCZthrFRPpnfm?projector=1&messagePartld=0.1

171



2/28/22, 9:33 AM

1l 5GE [:-;)'

< @ Rebecca Blackburn Hines aee

' Jan 19,2021 - Q@

Tomorrow morning, the SC House Education K-12
Subcommittee will consider legislation that will
mandate standardized, high stakes testing of all
students for the 2020-2021 academic school year
(SC READY, SC PASS and EOC testing). These
assessments would place an unreasonable level of
stress on both students and teachers, while also
taking important time away from instruction in a year

where there have already been countless disruptions.

| have sent a letter to the subcommittee asking them
to vote against this bill, as | believe it places students
and teachers at a disadvantage due to the
inconsistency of instructional models used
throughout South Carolina during the COVID-19
pandemic.

(5
= 3

January 19, 2021

Via Blectronic Mai

The Honorable Rave Felder

Houwse Education K12 Subcommitiee Chair
P16 Mary Mack Lane

Fon Mill, South Carolina 29718

Re: Opposition to 13618 Relating 10 Certain Stiddent Assessments
Dear Representative Felder and K- 12 Subcommittee Members

As o Board Trastee of School District 3 of Lexington and Richland Counties, | strongly urge you to vote against
House Hill 3618 which would require students to tabe federal and state mandoted assessments tor the 2020

2021 school year. Due to the variability of school schedules and Instructional models (e, virtwal, hybreid, and/or
in-persoa) ulihzed i Sowuth Caroling this academic year in response o COVID- 14, expcerbated by the foct that
a significant number of students may have been affected by mandatory quarantines of Tamily members,
teachers, of themselves, it would prove difficult to gather meaniogful, valid and reliable dats from highstakes
assessments sdministered by the South Carolina Department of Education. Such assessments do not pravide an
equitable measure of student and educator performance because of the inconsistency i instructional models; all
of our South Carolina students il teachers are not on a fevel playing ficld

As you are aware, the South Carolina Department of Education and several members of our South Caroling
federal legislative delegation have submitted i request 10 the US. Department of Educution to waive all federal

Write a comment... @

oD ® 8 O &

Home Watch Groups News Notifications Menu

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ogbl#inbox/FMfcgzGmvLMFLmFwbd TdkvBRMtFsxZdB?projector=1&messagePartld=0.1

IMG_0503.PNG

171



e L e
the minutes of the -

e, at request of d membe|
lina Code e
na
Public Statement Regarding Censure — 2/28/2022 pursudnt to South Caroll

-4-90(a)(4) .
A e ey BEDG, The Board majorty
Rebecca Blackburn Hines did not approve, disapprove, or otm%rgnt
act upon the contents of this attac '
[ was elected to represent the constituents of District 5. As such, I have an obligation to listen, to
learn, and to ask questions when necessary. While we have policies that guide the pathway to
working as a collective board, we are also bound by the responsibility as elected officials to

independently seek and research information; and to form our own opinions.

Only when we take a vote, are we bound by “majority rule” or following the “will of the board.”
Policy BB identifies “all powers of the board lie in its action as a body” and that “board members
acting as individuals have no authority over personnel or school affairs.” In fact, Policy BJ
clearly states that “board ‘members’ will keep themselves informed of pending legislation and
actively communicate board positions and concerns to elected representatives...”

Yes, [ wrote a letter to Governor McMaster and Superintendent Spearman. I had (and still have)
concerns regarding the situation that has presented itself regarding obscene materials in our
schools. I asked for guidance and clarification of an issue at a state level, as ONE Board Trustee
and as a parent of two little girls in our schools. In my view, I did not misrepresent anything in
my letter. I did not speak on behalf of the board. I do not and will not apologize for seeking
information to best represent the families and students in District 5.

[t seems that there is an issue over the use of district letterhead. Early on in my tenure, the board
was sent letterhead for our “use as needed” by the superintendent’s secretary. It was represented
to me that if we were advocating or asking questions as “a trustee,” that it was acceptable to use
letterhead as long as we did not “speak on behalf of the board.” In fact, I have sent several letters
to other elected and state officials on letterhead, speaking as one trustee. [ have not had to “ask
permission.” A few of these letters, which I am putting on the record, have been posted on social
media, and other board members have “liked” or commented on these in the past, raising no
concern about the use of letterhead. It was an intentional decision to quietly send a letter to ask
for guidance, without the use of social media or news media. I cannot control the response to the
letter. Once it was received, as I will submit to the record, the response was immediately
forwarded to the chair and the superintendent. It is most concerning that the conversation is
about letterhead and not the contents of the response.

It is also clear that several false and potentially defamatory statements are being made against me
to attack my reputation and deflect the true situation at hand. I have never demanded books to be
removed or spoken on behalf of the board. I will submit an email written back in November
2021, expressing constituents concerns about inappropriate textbooks and asking for
confirmation that they were not in District 5 schools. Dr. Ross promptly confirmed they were not
in our schools and the conversation ended. Again, asking for confirmation that a book is not in a
school is not demanding its removal.

[ am inclined to believe that discussing the specifics of the January 24" Board Meeting, the letter
in the New Irmo News, the February 7" Board Meeting, and the response from Superintendent
Spearman in this format at this meeting, because of a potential censure, is not appropriate and



will only serve to hurt our district and our administration even further, which is not my intention.
However, I will say that several statements included in the letter submitted by motion of this
board tonight are false and it is very disappointing that we continue down this path.

The irony of this censure is not lost on me. This is a sad example of leadership for the students in
our district. I could list out examples of hypocrisy, but ultimately, it’s not worth it. The only
thing left to say is that District 5 has made it clear that if you disagree with the status quo, you
will be attacked or shut down. We are teaching our children, for the second time via the threat of
censure, that if you speak your truth and act in good faith, you will be bullied and publicly
reprimanded. So, I will say to my girls, and every student in District 5, never apologize for doing
what you think is right. [f I am censured tonight, I will wear it like a badge of honor. I can look
my little girls in the eyes and say that I did what I thought was right.

% 50 i included with
—

Attachment
the minutes of
th

w 2 ¥,

t
to South Caroiir(lz)Code
-4-90(a) o
Ang 'Bosictgogoﬁgy BEDG. The Bc»art-:?1 gnnzjigzty
oy ve, or O
rove, disapprove, .
(;Et :‘;to:c,tﬁe contents of this attachment




Kenneth B. Loveless
228 Lookout Pointes Drive
Chapin, SC 29036
February 28,2022

Mrs. Janis Hammond

Chairperson of the Board of Trustees

School District Five of Lexington-Richland Counties
1020 Dutch Fork Road

Irmo, South Carolina 29063

Re: Recusal of Kenneth B. Loveless
Dear Mrs. Hammond:

As you know, on February 8, 2021 I submitted a statement regarding my affiliation with
Contract Construction Inc. as a result of the company by which I am employed and of which I
am a stockholder Loveless Commercial Contracting Inc., was operating as a subcontractor on the
S.C. Law Enforcement Division Forensic Lab project, Columbia, SC. On that date, I recused
myself from any and all votes, deliberations, and other actions on any matter that comes before
the Board of Trustees relating to Contract Construction Inc.

Since that time and as a result of consultation with ethical and legal experts, I intend to
terminate my recusal effective at the next Board meeting, currently scheduled for March 14,
2022. At the beginning of the next Board meeting, I will submit a statement setting forth the
reason my recusal has terminated, and I will participate fully in any matter involving Contract
Construction after today’s meeting.

However, in recognition that there was no prior notice my recusal was ending, I am not
going to participate in anything related to Contract Construction during this meeting, so the
Board members and the public will be aware that my recusal will conclude when this meeting is
adjourned. [ will step out of the room for any discussion or vote
Construction this evening. 4

oﬁlany’(hing involving Contract

ice Chairman of the Board of Trustees
Board Member




New Education
Funding Model
Impact

March 14, 2022




House Ways & Means Budget Changes

> New State Minimum Salary Schedule for Teacher
> Increases the starting salary for a Bachelor degree with O years of experience to $40,000
> Requires Districts to pay a minimum of 540,000 starting salary
> Currently, the Proviso requires maintaining the local percentage paid in prior years
> Districts are not required to pay the $4,000 increase if their current starting salary is over $40,000
> Recruitment and Retention issues are a concern if the $4,000 increase is not provided to the entire schedule
regardless of current starting salary
> 5% increase to State Bus Driver Salary Schedule
> Challenges filling current positions with competition in the market
> Minimum starting salary in the Districts to attract employees must be at least $15 per hour
> Some Districts are paying as much as $17.50 per hour

> This is much higher than the State Bus Driver Salary Schedule — additional funded through local funds



House Ways & Means Budget Changes (cont’d)

» Weighting changes for Weighted Pupil Units (WPUs)
» Removed weighted add-on for Dual Credit Enrollment
> Removed additional weighting for Pre Career & Technology Student
» Reduced weighted add-on for Limited English Proficiency
> Averaged weighting for Individuals for with Disabilities
> Increased weighted add-on for Pupils in Poverty

> The overall effect reduced Lexington Richland District 5’s % of the State’s WPU from 2.2% to 1.99%

Net Overall State Revenue impact is a loss of $4,923,311

Prior to the 1 year Hold Harmless Provision
$550,603 increase after the Hold Harmless Provision



Current Budget Implications

> Cost Estimate of $4,000 increase to all employees (approximately 1,500) paid on the Teacher Salary Schedule
{including Retirement & FICA)

$7,920,000

> Cost Estimate of salary increase for Bus Drivers {including Retirement & FICA)

$237,600

> Unencumbered time requirement for Elementary School Teachers will require additional staff for monitoring students
during lunch/recess (proposed legislation)



Current Budget Implications

> 1% increase for Employer Retirement Contributions & proposed 18.1% increase in Employer Health Costs

> This does not include any salary increases for school support staff (teacher’s assistants, administrative assistants,
maintenance mechanics, food service workers, or custodians) who are instrumental in keeping the buildings safe,
clean, and maintaining an environment conducive for learning.

> To cover a loss this large with local funds would be challenging for our District. The current year’s mill cap is
estimated at 13.4 mills with an estimated $285,000 per operating mill providing $3,819,000 in additional local

revenue. This would come at cost to investment property owners of $80 per $100,000 of property assessed value.

> Look back mills are available, but this would further increase property taxes for the investment property owners.



Summary

> New State Money = $550,603

> Estimated Cost of $4,000 increase to staff on the teacher salary schedule (including
Retirement & FICA) = $7,639,000

> Estimated Cost of Step (ALL employees), $4K & local increase for teachers, 2% increase in
utilities, Health Insurance Increase, & Retirement 1% Increase = $20,339,000

» Results for District 5 will be higher property taxes, larger class sizes, less individual
supports for students due to less staff, less employees completing more tasks as reporting
requirements continue to increase



New Education
Funding Model
Impact

March 14, 2022




2/24/22, 9:46 AM CURRENT POLICY
Policy GCB Professional Staff Contracts and Compensation EXHIBIT D

Issued 2/17
Purpose: To establish the basic structure for professional staff contracts and compensation.
Compensation

The board will attempt to pay its professional employees at a level that will attract and hold (retain) personnel
dedicated to education.

The compensation of certiricated personnel is based on the state salary schedule with local supplements as
approved by the board. The schedule takes into consideration the levels of professional training and years of
service in the district. The district may uniformly negotiate salaries below the salary schedule for non-TERI
retired teachers and administrators.

The effective date for annual salary changes as determined by the salary schedule or by action of the board is
July 1 unless extenuating circumstances prohibit this decision until after July 1.

Contracts

Upon recommendation of the superintendent, the board will notify teachers in writing of their employment status
before May 1 for the following school year. Personnel must give written acceptance of their contracts to the
superintendent or his/her designee before May 11. Failure to give such notification constitutes contract rejection.

The district reserves the right to conclude that any certificated personnel who has not accepted his/her contract
by signing and returning it by the required date has rejected the district's offer of employment, in which case the
district may declare the position vacant. Notice of the superintendent's recommendation not to renew an
employment contract must be given in writing before May 1.

The board will award administrative contracts on the recommendation of the superintendent.
Teacher and Employee Retention Incentive Program (TERI) Participants

Should a mid-year vacancy occur in a contract position held by a TERI employee, the board authorizes the
superintendent or his/her designee to fill such vacancy for the remainder of the school year in which the vacancy
occurs through a letter of agreement. This letter of agreement will state that the employee has no right to or
expectation of continuing employment beyond the period specified in the letter of agreement.

When issuing contracts, the district will offer TERI employees working under TERI agreements that will expire
during the ensuing school year the same type of contract the participant had the previous year. The contract will
specifically contain notice that the contract expires on the date designated in the employee's TERI agreement
and will specifically reiterate said expiration date.

Contract releases
For release of teachers from contracts, see policy GCQC/GCQD.
Adopted 8/1/73; Revised 11/16/81, 4/2/90, 9/28/09, 1/26/15, 2/27/17
Legal references:
S.C. Code, 1976, as amended:
Section 9-1-2210 - Teacher and Employee Retention Incentive Program; operation. /

https://boardpolicyonline.com/?b=lex5 1/2



2/24/22, 9:46 AM Document

Section 59-19-80 - Requirements as to purchases and teacher employment (teacher contracts to be
awarded in public).

Section 59-19-290 - Contracts in excess of apportioned funds void.

Section 59-20-50 - Minimum salary schedule.

Section 59-21-20 - Teacher contracts to be based on school term of 190 days.

Section 59-25-57 - Salaries negotiable below schedule for non-TERI retired teachers.
Section 59-25-410 - Notice to teacher of employment status.

Section 59-25-420 - Teacher required to notify board of acceptance; opportunity for hearing if not
reemployed.

Section 59-25-710 - Salary complaints,
State Board of Education Regulations:
R-43-205.1 - Assisting, Developing, and Evaluating Professional Teaching (ADEPT).

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties

https://boardpolicyonline.com/?b=lex5 2/2



Policy
SECOND AND FINAL READING OF PROPOSED REVISIONS — MARCH 14, 2022

Policy GCB Professional Staff Contracts and Compensation

Issued 2/17

Purpose: To establish the basic structure for professional staff contracts and compensation.
Compensation

The board will attempt to pay its professional employees at a level that will attract and hold (retain) personnel dedicated to
education.

The compensation of certificated personnel is based on the state salary schedule with local supplements as approved by the board.
The schedule takes into consideration the levels of professional training and years of service in the district. The district may
uniformly negotiate salaries below the salary schedule for non-TERI retired teachers and administrators.

The effective date for annual salary changes as determined by the salary schedule or by action of the board is July 1 unless
extenuating circumstances prohibit this decision until after July 1.

Contracts

Upon recommendation of the superintendent, the board will notify teachers in writing of their employment status before May 1 for
the following school year. Personnel must give written acceptance of their contracts to the superintendent or his/her designee before
May 11. Failure to give such notification constitutes contract rejection.

The district reserves the right to conclude that any certificated personnel who has not accepted his/her contract by signing and
returning it by the required date has rejected the district's offer of employment, in which case the district may declare the position
vacant. Notice of the superintendent's recommendation not to renew an employment contract must be given in writing before
May1.

Certified personnel will be issued one year contracts unless otherwise approved by the board. The board will award administrative
contracts on the recommendation of the superintendent.

Teacher and Employee Retention Incentive Program (TERI) Participants

Should a mid-year vacancy occur in a contract position held by a TERI employee, the board authorizes the superintendent or his/her
designee to fill such vacancy for the remainder of the school year in which the vacancy occurs through a letter of agreement. This
letter of agreement will state that the employee has no right to or expectation of continuing employment beyond the period
specified in the letter of agreement.

When issuing contracts, the district will offer TERI employees working under TERI agreements that will expire during the ensuing
school year the same type of contract the participant had the previous year. The contract will specifically contain notice that the
contract expires on the date designated in the employee's TERI agreement and will specifically reiterate said expiration date.

Contract releases
For release of teachers from contracts, see policy GCQC/GCQD.
Adopted 8/1/73; Revised 11/16/81, 4/2/90, 9/28/09, 1/26/15, 2/27/17
Legal references:

S.C. Code, 1976, as amended:

Section 9-1-2210 - Teacher and Employee Retention Incentive Program; operation.

Section 59-19-80 - Requirements as to purchases and teacher employment (teacher contracts to be awarded in
public).

Section 59-19-290 - Contracts in excess of apportioned funds void.

Section 59-20-50 - Minimum salary schedule.

Section 59-21-20 - Teacher contracts to be based on school term of 190 days.

~e



Section 59-25-57 - Salaries negotiable below schedule for non-TERI retired teachers.

Section 59-25-410 - Notice to teacher of employment status.

Section 59-25-420 - Teacher required to notify board of acceptance; opportunity for hearing if not reemployed.
Section 59-25-710 - Salary complaints.

State Board of Education Regulations:

R-43-205.1 - Assisting, Developing, and Evaluating Professional Teaching (ADEPT).

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties

A



2/24/22, 9:47 AM CURRENT POLICY

Policy GDB Support Staff Compensation
EXHIBIT E

Issued 2/17
Purpose: To establish the basic structure for support staff compensation.

The board will set the salary of all support staff on the recommendation of the superintendent. The board will set
compensation according to the responsibility of the position, the services rendered, the provisions of the district's
operational budget, and any applicable state and federal laws.

The effective date for all salary changes is July 1.

Except under unusual circumstances, the district does not issue contracts to support staff. The district considers
such staff to be "at-will" employees under the provisions of South Carolina law.

Adopted 2/24/69; Revised 11/16/81, 4/28/08, 2/27/17
Legal references:
S.C. Code, 1976, as amended:
Section 59-67-470 - School bus drivers to be employed by the board of trustees.
Section 59-67-480 - Salaries of school-bus drivers to be fixed annually by General Assembly.

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties

https://boardpolicyonline.com/?b=lex5 1M



Policy
SECOND AND FINAL READING OF PROPOSED REVISIONS — MARCH 14, 2022

Policy GDB Support Staff Compensation

Issued 2/17

Purpose: To establish the basic structure for support staff compensation.

The board will set the salary of all support staff on the recommendation of the superintendent. The board will set compensation
according to the responsibility of the position, the services rendered, the provisions of the district's operational budget, and any
applicable state and federal laws.

The effective date for all salary changes is July 1.

Except unelerunusualcireumstances, as approved by the board the district does not issue contracts to support staff. The district
considers such staff to be "at-will" employees under the provisions of South Carolina law.

Adopted 2/24/69; Revised 11/16/81, 4/28/08, 2/27/17
Legal references:
S.C. Code, 1976, as amended:
Section 59-67-470 - School bus drivers to be employed by the board of trustees.

Section 59-67-480 - Salaries of school bus drivers to be fixed annually by General Assembly.

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties

lof1l



EXHIBIT g

MEMORANDUM

To: Members of the Board of Trustees

Through: Dr. Akil E. Ross, Sr.
Superintendent

From: Marty Rawls,
Chief Finance Officer TVLDN%/ W
Date: March 9, 2022

Re: Action Item: First Reading - Spring Bond Issuance

Please see attached the Resolution for the 2022 Series A Bond Issuance and a presentation outlining the
details.

MR

Attachment

www.lexrich5.org
1020 Dutch Fork Road ¢ Irmo, South Carolina 29063 803-476-8000



First Reading
Spring Bond
Resolution

March 14, 2022




Proposed Timeline

October 11, 2021

February 28, 2022
February 28, 2022

March 14, 2022
March 28, 2022
April — May 2022

Board approved Capital Projects for 2022-23 and 2023-24

Board Finance Workshop

Discussion of Spring Bond Issuance

First Reading of Proposed Bond Resolution
Second & Final Reading of Proposed Bond Resolution
Issue Bonds for Capital Improvement Projects (includes Chapin HS Stadium

expansion) & Irmo HS East Wing Construction



2022 Series A Bond Issuance

» 69.5 mills — current approved millage rate
> 8% Constitutional debt limit = $46,910,641
» Annual Maintenance (includes Technology) = $15,000,000

» 2022 available resources (Irmo HS East Wing) = $34,000,000 (net resources) with
payments

» Importance of issuing maximum amount available within approved millage and 8%
Constitutional debt limit



Approved Projects - Annual Maintenance

October 11, 2021 - D5 Board approved $15,000,000
2022-2023 Annual Maintenance Capital Improvement Projects

» Chapin HS Stadium $8,500,000
» CrossRoads Intermediate School Roof S1,050,000
» Dutch Fork HS Track Replacement $500,000
» Artificial Turf Replacement: DFHS, CHS, IHS $1,350,000
> Activity Bus $200,000
» Technology (Replace Firewalls) $3,200,000
» Contingency $200,000



Current & Future Priority Projects

» Irmo High — Academic Wing Replacement — not included in Estimated Cost — separate funding source

Estimated
Cost
$130 million



First Reading
Spring Bond
Resolution

March 14, 2022




A RESOLUTION

AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF NOT EXCEEDING
$49,000,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2022, OR
SUCH OTHER APPROPRIATE SERIES DESIGNATION, OF SCHOOL
DISTRICT NO. 5 OF LEXINGTON COUNTY AND RICHLAND
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA; FIXING THE FORM AND DETAILS
OF THE BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE SUPERINTENDENT TO
DETERMINE CERTAIN MATTERS RELATING TO THE BONDS;
PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS AND THE
DISPOSITION OF THE PROCEEDS THEREOF;, AND OTHER
MATTERS RELATING THERETO.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 5 OF
LEXINGTON COUNTY AND RICHLAND COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Findings and Determinations. The Board of Trustees (the “Board”), as the governing
body of School District No. 5 of Lexington County and Richland County, South Carolina (the “School
District”), hereby finds and determines:

@ The School District was organized by action of the Lexington County Board of Education
in 1951 and the Richland County Board of Education in 1952. The School District is also known as
Richland-Lexington School District No. 5. The Board is the governing body of the School District.

(b) Aurticle X, Section 15 of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina, 1895, as amended
(the “Constitution”), provides that after November 30, 1982, the governing body of any school district may
incur general obligation debt in an amount not exceeding eight percent of the assessed value of all taxable
property of such school district upon such terms and conditions as the General Assembly may prescribe.
Such Article further provides that if general obligation debt is authorized by a majority vote of the qualified
electors of the school district voting in a referendum authorized by law, there shall be no conditions or
restrictions limiting the incurring of such indebtedness except as specified in such Article.

© Title 59, Chapter 71, Article 1, Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the
“School Bond Act”), provides that the board of trustees of any school district may issue general obligation
bonds of such school district for the purpose of defraying the cost of capital improvements to any amount
not exceeding the constitutional debt limitation applicable to such school district. The School Bond Act
requires the county board of education wherein the School District is located, if there is such, to approve the
issuance of such bonds.

(d) Title 11, Chapter 27, Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (“Title 11,
Chapter 277), provides that if an election be prescribed by the provisions of the School Bond Act but is not
required by the provisions of Article X of the Constitution, then in every such instance, no election need be
held and the remaining provisions of the School Bond Act shall constitute a full and complete authorization
to issue bonds in accordance with such remaining provisions. Title 11, Chapter 27 further provides that any
school district of the state may issue bonds in fully-registered form.

(e) The assessed value of all taxable property in the School District, as of June 30, 2021, is
$586,383,014. Eight (8%) percent of such sum is $46,910,641. The School District does not have any
outstanding general obligation debt subject to the limitation imposed by Article X, Section 15(6) of the
Constitution. Thus, the School District may incur $46,910,641 of general obligation debt within its

1

47463786 v2



applicable constitutional debt limitation. The final par amount of the Bonds will not exceed the School
District’s constitutional debt limit.

(" Pursuant to a Resolution adopted by the Board on August 13, 2012, the Board adopted
Written Procedures related to Tax-Exempt Debt.

(o) It is now in the best interest of the School District for the Board to provide for the
issuance and sale of general obligation bonds of the School District pursuant to the Constitution and laws
of the State of South Carolina (the “State”) in the principal amount of not exceeding $49,000,000, the
proceeds of which will be used for the purposes of funding annual capital maintenance projects and a
portion of the improvements planned at Irmo High School (the “Projects”), paying the costs of issuance
of the Bonds (hereinafter defined) and such other lawful purposes as the Board may determine.

Section 2. Authorizations and Details of Bonds. Pursuant to the aforesaid provisions of the
Constitution and laws of the State there is hereby authorized to be issued general obligation bonds of the
School District in the amount of not exceeding $49,000,000 to obtain funds for any one or more of the
purposes mentioned in Section 1(g) above, including any financial and legal fees relating thereto and other
incidental costs of issuing the Bonds. The Bonds shall be designated “$49,000,000 (or such lesser amount
issued) General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022 (or such other appropriate series designation) of School
District No. 5 of Lexington County and Richland County, South Carolina” (the “Bonds”).

The Bonds shall be issued as fully-registered bonds; shall be dated as of their date of delivery; shall
be in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof not exceeding the principal amount of the
Bonds maturing in each year; shall be numbered from R-1 upward; shall bear interest at such times as
hereafter designated by the Superintendent at such rate or rates as may be determined at the time of the sale
thereof; and shall mature serially in successive annual installments as determined by the Superintendent.

Both the principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in any coin or currency of the
United States of America which is, at the time of payment, legal tender for public and private debts.

Section 3. Delegation of Authority to Determine Certain Matters Relating to the Bonds. The Board
hereby delegates to the Superintendent the authority to determine (a) the par amount of the Bonds; (b) the
maturity dates of the Bonds and the respective principal amounts maturing on such dates; (c) the interest
payment dates of the Bonds; (d) redemption provisions, if any, for the Bonds; and (e) the date, time and
manner of sale of the Bonds. At the time of the sale, the School District reserves the right, in its sole
discretion, either to decrease or increase the principal amount of the Bonds maturing in any year (all
calculations to be rounded to the nearest $5,000), provided that any such decrease or increase shall not
exceed 15% of the par amount of the Bonds maturing in any year or such other percentage as agreed to
by the School District and the winning bidder.

The Board hereby delegates to the Superintendent the authority to receive bids on behalf of the
Board and the authority to award the sale of the Bonds to the lowest bidder therefor in accordance with the
terms of the Official Notice of Sale for the Bonds, provided the true interest cost of the Bonds does not
exceed 2.5%. After the sale of the Bonds , the Superintendent shall submit a written report to the Board
setting forth the results of the sale of the Bonds.

In addition to the authority delegated above, the Superintendent has the authority, upon

recommendation from the School District’s Financial Advisor and Bond Counsel, to sell the Bonds through
a bank placement if it is determined to be in the best interest of the School District.

47463786 v2



Section 4. Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds. The School District shall cause books
(herein referred to as the “registry books™) to be kept at the offices of the Registrar/Paying Agent, for the
registration and transfer of the Bonds. Upon presentation at its office for such purpose the Registrar/Paying
Agent shall register or transfer, or cause to be registered or transferred, on such registry books, the Bonds
under such reasonable regulations as the Registrar/Paying Agent may prescribe.

Each Bond shall be transferable only upon the registry books of the School District, which shall be
kept for such purpose at the principal office of the Registrar/Paying Agent, by the registered owner thereof
in person or by his duly authorized attorney upon surrender thereof together with a written instrument of
transfer satisfactory to the Registrar/Paying Agent duly executed by the registered owner or his or her duly
authorized attorney. Upon the transfer of any such Bond, the Registrar/Paying Agent on behalf of the
School District shall issue in the name of the transferee a new fully-registered Bond of the same principal
amount, interest rate and maturity as the surrendered Bond. Any Bond surrendered in exchange for a new
registered Bond pursuant to this Section shall be canceled by the Registrar/Paying Agent.

The School District and the Registrar/Paying Agent may deem or treat the person in whose name
any fully-registered Bond shall be registered upon the registry books as the absolute owner of such Bond,
whether such Bond shall be overdue or not, for the purpose of receiving payment of the principal of and
interest on such Bond and for all other purposes and all such payments so made to any such registered
owner or upon his order shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond to
the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither the School District nor the Registrar/Paying Agent shall
be affected by any notice to the contrary. In all cases in which the privilege of transferring Bonds is
exercised, the School District shall execute and the Registrar/Paying Agent shall authenticate and deliver
Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution. Neither the School District nor the
Registrar/Paying Agent shall be obliged to make any such transfer of Bonds during the fifteen (15) days
preceding an interest payment date on such Bonds.

Section 5. Record Date. The School District hereby establishes a record date for the payment of
interest or for the giving of notice of any proposed redemption of Bonds, and such record date shall be the
fifteenth (15th) day (whether or not a business day) preceding an interest payment date on such Bond or, in
the case of any proposed redemption of Bonds, such record date shall be the fifteenth (15th) day (whether or
not a business day) prior to the mailing of notice of redemption of Bonds.

Section 6. Mutilation, Loss, Theft or Destruction of Bonds. In case any Bond shall at any time
become mutilated in whole or in part, or be lost, stolen or destroyed, or be so defaced as to impair the value
thereof to the owner, the School District shall execute and the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver at the
principal office of the Registrar, or send by registered mail to the owner thereof at his request, risk and
expense a new Bond of the same series, interest rate and maturity and of like tenor and effect in exchange or
substitution for and upon the surrender for cancellation of such defaced, mutilated or partly destroyed Bond,
or in lieu of or in substitution for such lost, stolen or destroyed Bond. In any such event the applicant for the
issuance of a substitute Bond shall furnish the School District and the Registrar evidence or proof
satisfactory to the School District and the Registrar of the loss, destruction, mutilation, defacement or theft
of the original Bond, and of the ownership thereof, and also such security and indemnity as may be required
by the laws of the State or such greater amount as may be required by the School District and the Registrar.
Any duplicate Bond issued under the provisions of this Section in exchange and substitution for any
defaced, mutilated or partly destroyed Bond or in substitution for any allegedly lost, stolen or wholly-
destroyed Bond shall be entitled to the identical benefits under this Resolution as was the original Bond in
lieu of which such duplicate Bond is issued, and shall be entitled to equal and proportionate benefits with all
the other Bonds of the same series issued hereunder.

47463786 v2



All expenses necessary for the providing of any duplicate Bond shall be borne by the applicant
therefor.

Section 7. Execution of Bonds. The Bonds shall be executed in the name of the School District
with the manual or facsimile signature of the Chair of the Board attested by the manual or facsimile
signature of the Secretary of the Board under the seal of the School District which shall be impressed,
imprinted or reproduced thereon. The Bonds shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose unless
there shall have been endorsed thereon a certificate of authentication. Each Bond shall bear a certificate of
authentication manually executed by the Registrar/Paying Agent in substantially the form set forth herein.

Section 8. Form of Bonds. The Bonds shall be in substantially the form set forth as Appendix A
attached hereto.

Section 9. Eligible Securities. The Bonds initially issued (the “Initial Bonds™) will be eligible
securities for the purposes of the book-entry system of transfer maintained by The Depository Trust
Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), and transfers of beneficial ownership of the Initial Bonds shall
be made only through DTC and its participants in accordance with rules specified by DTC. Such beneficial
ownership must be of $5,000 principal amount of Bonds of the same maturity or any integral multiple of
$5,000.

The Initial Bonds shall be issued in fully-registered form, one Bond for each of the maturities of the
Bonds, in the name of Cede & Co., as the nominee of DTC. When any principal of or interest on the Initial
Bonds becomes due, the School District shall transmit to DTC an amount equal to such installment of
principal and interest. DTC shall remit such payments to the beneficial owners of the Bonds or their
nominees in accordance with its rules and regulations.

Notices of redemption of the Initial Bonds or any portion thereof shall be sent to DTC in
accordance with the provisions of this Resolution.

If (a) DTC determines not to continue to act as securities depository for the Bonds, or (b) the School
District has advised DTC of its determination that DTC is incapable of discharging its duties, the School
District shall attempt to retain another qualified securities depository to replace DTC. Upon receipt by the
School District of the Initial Bonds together with an assignment duly executed by DTC, the School District
shall execute and deliver to the successor securities depository Bonds of the same principal amount, interest
rate and maturity registered in the name of such successor.

If the School District is unable to retain a qualified successor to DTC or the School District has
determined that it is in its best interest not to continue the book-entry system of transfer or that interests of
the beneficial owners of the Bonds might be adversely affected if the book-entry system of transfer is
continued (the School District undertakes no obligation to make any investigation to determine the
occurrence of any events that would permit it to make any such determination), and has made provision to
so notify beneficial owners of the Bonds by mailing an appropriate notice to DTC, upon receipt by the
School District of the Initial Bonds together with an assignment duly executed by DTC, the School District
shall execute, authenticate and deliver to the DTC participants Bonds in fully-registered form, in
substantially the form set forth in Section 8 of this Resolution in the denominations of any integral multiple
of $5,000.

47463786 v2



Section 10. Security for the Bonds. The full faith, credit, resources and taxing power of the School
District are hereby irrevocably pledged for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds as they
respectively mature and to create such sinking fund as may be necessary therefor. There shall be levied
annually by the Auditors of Lexington County and Richland County (the “Auditors”) and collected by the
Treasurers of Lexington County and Richland County (the “Treasurers”) in the same manner as county
taxes are levied and collected, a tax, without limit, on all taxable property in the School District sufficient to
pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds as they respectively mature and to create such sinking fund as
may be necessary therefor.

The Auditors and Treasurers shall be notified as to the delivery of and payment for the Bonds and
are hereby directed to levy and collect, respectively, on all taxable property in the School District, a tax,
without limit, on all taxable property in the School District sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on
the Bonds as they respectively mature and to create such sinking fund as may be necessary therefor.

Section 11. Defeasance. The obligations of the School District under this Resolution and the
pledges, covenants and agreements of the School District herein made or provided for, shall be fully
discharged and satisfied as to any portion of the Bonds, and such Bond or Bonds shall no longer be deemed
to be outstanding hereunder when:

@ such Bond or Bonds shall have been purchased by the School District and surrendered to
the School District for cancellation or otherwise surrendered to the School District or the Paying Agent and
is canceled or subject to cancellation by the School District or the Paying Agent; or

(b) payment of the principal of and interest on such Bonds either (i) shall have been made or
caused to be made in accordance with the terms thereof, or (ii) shall have been provided for by irrevocably
depositing with a corporate trustee in trust and irrevocably set aside exclusively for such payment (1)
moneys sufficient to make such payment or (2) Government Obligations (hereinafter defined) maturing as to
principal and interest in such amounts and at such times as will ensure the availability of sufficient moneys
to make such payment and all necessary and proper fees, compensation and expenses of the corporate
trustee. At such time as the Bonds shall no longer be deemed to be outstanding hereunder, such Bonds shall
cease to draw interest from the due date thereof and, except for the purposes of any such payment from such
moneys or Government Obligations as set forth in (ii) above, shall no longer be secured by or entitled to the
benefits of this Resolution.

“Government Obligations” shall mean any of the following:

(1) direct obligations of the United States of America or agencies thereof or
obligations, the payment of principal or interest on which, in the opinion of the Attorney
General of the United States, is fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the United
States of America; and

(i) non-callable, U.S. Treasury Securities - State and Local Government
Series (SLGS).

© Such Bond or Bonds shall be defeased as provided in Section 11-14-110 of the S.C. Code
as such may be amended from time to time.

47463786 v2



Section 12. Exemption from State Taxes. Both the principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be
exempt, in accordance with the provisions of Section 12-2-50 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976,
as amended, from all State, county, municipal, school district and all other taxes or assessments, except
estate or other transfer taxes, direct or indirect, general or special, whether imposed for the purpose of
general revenue or otherwise.

Section 13. Sale of Bonds; Form of Notice of Sale. The Bonds shall be sold at public sale. A
Notice of Sale shall be distributed to prospective bidders and a summary of such Notice of Sale shall be
published in a newspaper having general circulation in the State, not less than seven (7) days prior to the
date set for such sale. The Notice of Sale shall be in substantially the form set forth as Appendix B attached
hereto.

Section 14. Preliminary and Official Statement. The Board hereby authorizes and directs the
Superintendent to prepare, or cause to be prepared, a Preliminary Official Statement to be distributed to
prospective purchasers of the Bonds together with the Notice of Sale. The Board authorizes the
Superintendent to designate the Preliminary Official Statement as “near final” for purposes of Rule 15¢2-12
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Rule”). The Superintendent is further
authorized to see to the completion of the final form of the Official Statement upon the sale of the Bonds so
that it may be provided to the purchaser of the Bonds.

Section 15. Filings with Central Repository. In compliance with Section 11-1-85 of the S.C. Code,
if the Bonds are issued as tax-exempt, the School District covenants that it will file or cause to be filed with
a central repository for further availability in the secondary bond market when requested: (a) a copy of the
annual audit of the School District within thirty (30) days of the School District’s receipt thereof; and (b)
within thirty (30) days of the occurrence thereof, relevant information of an event which, in the opinion of
the School District, adversely affects more than five percent (5%) of the School District’s revenue or its tax
base.

Section 16. Continuing Disclosure. In compliance with the Rule, if the Bonds are publicly-traded,
the School District covenants and agrees for the benefit of the holders from time to time of the Bonds to
execute and deliver prior to closing, and to thereafter comply with the terms of, a Continuing Disclosure
Certificate in substantially the form appearing as Appendix C to this Resolution. In the event of a failure of
the School District to comply with any of the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, an event
of default under this Resolution shall not be deemed to have occurred. In such event, the sole remedy of any
bondholder or beneficial owner shall be an action to compel performance by the School District.

Section 17. Deposit and Use of Proceeds. The proceeds shall be deposited with the Lexington
County Treasurer in a special fund to the credit of the School District and shall be applied solely to the
purposes for which the Bonds have been issued, including payment of costs of issuance.

Section 18. Reimbursement of Certain Expenditures. The Board hereby declares that this
Resolution shall constitute its declaration of official intent pursuant to Regulation § 1.150-2 to reimburse the
School District from the proceeds of the Bonds for expenditures with respect to the Projects (the
“Expenditures”). The School District anticipates incurring Expenditures with respect to the Projects prior to
the issuance by the School District of the Bonds for such purposes. To be eligible for reimbursement of the
Expenditures, the payment date of such Expenditures must be subsequent to the date occurring sixty (60)
days prior to the adoption of this resolution and the reimbursement allocation must be made not later than
18 months after the later of (a) the date on which the Expenditures were paid, or (b) the date the Projects
was placed in service, but in no event more than three (3) years after the original Expenditures. The
Expenditures are incurred solely to acquire, construct or rehabilitate property having a reasonably expected

6

47463786 v2



economic life of at least one (1) year. The source of funds for the Expenditures with respect to the Projects
will be the School District’s general reserve funds or other legally-available funds.

Section 19. Tax Covenants. The School District hereby covenants and agrees with the holders of
the Bonds that it will not take any action which will, or fail to take any action which failure will, cause
interest on the Bonds to become includable in the gross income of the bondholders for federal income tax
purposes pursuant to the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and
regulations promulgated thereunder in effect on the date of original issuance of the Bonds. The School
District further covenants and agrees with the holders of the Bonds that no use of the proceeds of the Bonds
shall be made which, if such use had been reasonably expected on the date of issue of the Bonds would have
caused the Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds,” as defined in Section 148 of the Code, and to that end the School
District hereby shall:

@ comply with the applicable provisions of Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code
and any regulations promulgated thereunder so long as the Bonds are outstanding;

(b) establish such funds, make such calculations and pay such amounts, in the manner and at
the times required in order to comply with the requirements of the Code relating to required rebates of
certain amounts to the United States; and

© make such reports of such information at the time and places required by the Code.

Section 20. Miscellaneous. The Board hereby authorizes the Chair of the Board, the Secretary of
the Board, the Superintendent and the Chief Financial Officer (or the equivalent thereto) to execute such
documents and instruments as may be necessary to effect the issuance of the Bonds.

The Board hereby authorizes the engagement of Burr & Forman LLP as Bond Counsel in regard to
the Bonds. The Superintendent is authorized to execute such contracts, documents or engagement letters as
may be necessary and appropriate to effectuate said engagement.

All rules, regulations, resolutions and parts thereof, procedural or otherwise, in conflict herewith or
the proceedings authorizing the issuance of the Bonds are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed
and this Resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its adoption.

Adopted this day of , 2022.

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 5 OF LEXINGTON
COUNTY AND RICHLAND COUNTY,
SOUTH CAROLINA

Chair, Board of Trustees
(SEAL)

ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Trustees

47463786 v2



Appendix A
FORM OF BOND
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 5 OF LEXINGTON COUNTY AND RICHLAND COUNTY
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2022
No. R-

INTEREST MATURITY ORIGINAL
RATE DATE ISSUE DATE CusIpP

%

REGISTERED HOLDER:
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: DOLLARS
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that School District No. 5 of Lexington County and
Richland County, South Carolina (the “School District™), is justly indebted and, for value received, hereby

promises to pay to the registered holder named above, or registered assigns, the principal amount shown
above on the maturity date shown above, upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at the principal

office of in (the “Paying Agent”), and to pay interest on
such principal sum from the date hereof at the interest rate per annum shown above until this Bond matures.
Interest on this Bond is payable 1, and semiannually thereafter on 1and

1 of each year, until this Bond matures, and shall be payable by electronic transfer or check
or draft mailed to the person in whose name this Bond is registered on the registration books of the School
District maintained by the registrar, presently in (the “Regi-
strar”), at the close of business on the fifteenth (15th) day of the calendar month preceding each semiannual
interest payment date. The principal and interest on this Bond are payable in any coin or currency of the
United States of America which is, at the time of payment, legal tender for public and private debts;
provided, however, that interest on this fully-registered Bond shall be paid by check or draft as set forth
above.

This Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Resolution of the School District
authorizing the Bonds, nor become valid or obligatory for any purpose, until the Certificate of
Authentication hereon shall have been duly executed by the Registrar.

For the payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond as it respectively matures and for the
creation of such sinking fund as may be necessary to provide for the prompt payment thereof, the full faith,
credit, resources and taxing power of the School District are hereby irrevocably pledged, and there shall be
levied annually by the Auditors of Lexington County and Richland County and collected by the Treasurers
of Lexington County and Richland County, in the same manner as county taxes are levied and collected, a
tax, without limit, on all taxable property in the School District sufficient to pay the principal of and interest
on this Bond as it respectively matures and to create such sinking fund as may be necessary to provide
therefor.

47463786 v2



The Bonds are being issued by means of a book-entry system with no physical distribution of bond
certificates to be made except as provided in the Resolution. One bond certificate with respect to each date
on which the Bonds are stated to mature, registered in the name of the securities depository nominee, is
being issued and required to be deposited with the securities depository and immobilized in its custody. The
book-entry system will evidence positions held in the Bonds by the securities depository’s participants,
beneficial ownership of the Bonds in the principal amount of any integral multiple of $5,000 being
evidenced in the records of such participants. Transfers of ownership shall be effected on the records of the
securities depository and its participants pursuant to rules and procedures established by the securities
depository and its participants. The School District and the Registrar/Paying Agent will recognize the
securities depository nominee, while the registered owner of this bond, as the owner of this bond for all
purposes, including payments of principal of and redemption premium, if any, and interest on this bond,
notices and voting. Transfer of principal and interest payments to participants of the securities depository
will be the responsibility of the securities depository, and transfer of principal, redemption premium, if any,
and interest payments to beneficial owners of the Bonds by participants of the securities depository will be
the responsibility of such participants and other nominees of such beneficial owners. The School District
will not be responsible or liable for such transfers of payments or for maintaining, supervision or reviewing
the records maintained by the securities depository, the securities depository nominee, its participants or
persons acting through such participants. While the securities depository nominee is the owner of this bond,
notwithstanding, the provision hereinabove contained, payments of principal of, redemption premium, if
any, and interest on this bond shall be made in accordance with existing arrangements between the
Registrar/Paying Agent or its successors under the Resolution and the securities depository.

This Bond is one of a series of Bonds of like date of original issue, tenor and effect, except as to
number, date of maturity, denomination and rate of interest, aggregating and no/100
Dollars ($ ), issued pursuant to and in accordance with Article X, Section 15 of the
Constitution of the State of South Carolina, 1895, as amended (the “Constitution”); Title 59, Chapter 71,
Article 1, Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended; Title 11, Chapter 27, Code of Laws of South
Carolina 1976, as amended; and a Resolution duly adopted by the Board of Trustees of the School District.

The Bonds will not be subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities.

This Bond is transferable as provided in the Resolution, only upon the books of the School District
kept for that purpose at the principal office of the Registrar by the registered holder in person or by his duly
authorized attorney upon surrender of this Bond together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to
the Registrar duly executed by the registered holder or his duly authorized attorney. Thereupon a new fully-
registered Bond or Bonds of the same aggregate principal amount, interest rate, and maturity shall be issued
to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the Resolution. The School District, the Registrar and
the Paying Agent may deem and treat the person in whose name this Bond is registered as the absolute
owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of the principal hereof and interest due
hereon and for all other purposes.

Under the laws of the State of South Carolina (the “State”), this Bond and the interest hereon are
exempt from all State, county, municipal, school district and other taxes or assessments, except estate or
other transfer taxes, direct or indirect, general or special, whether imposed for the purpose of general
revenue or otherwise.

It is hereby certified and recited that all acts, conditions and things required by the Constitution and
laws of the State to exist, to happen and to be performed precedent to or in the issuance of this Bond exist,
have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner as required by law; that
the amount of this Bond, together with all other indebtedness of the School District does not exceed the

A-2

47463786 v2



applicable limitation of indebtedness under the laws of the State; and, that provision has been made for the
levy and collection of a tax, without limit, on all taxable property in the School District sufficient to pay the
principal and interest on this Bond as it respectively matures and to create such sinking fund as may be
necessary therefor.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 5 OF LEXINGTON COUNTY AND
RICHLAND COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, has caused this Bond to be signed with the facsimile
signature of the Chair of the Board of Trustees of the School District, attested by the facsimile signature of
the Secretary of the Board of Trustees of the School District and the seal of the School District impressed,
imprinted or reproduced hereon.

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 5 OF LEXINGTON
COUNTY AND RICHLAND COUNTY,
SOUTH CAROLINA

Chair, Board of Trustees

ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Trustees
[FORM OF REGISTRAR’S CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION]
Date of Authentication:

This Bond is one of the Bonds described in the within-mentioned Resolution of School District No.
5 o f Lexington County and Richland County, South Carolina.

as Registrar

By:
Authorized Officer

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this Bond, shall be
construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations.

TEN COM - as tenants in common UNIF GIFT MIN ACT -
TEN ENT - as tenants by the Custodian
entireties (Cust) (Minor)
under Uniform Gifts to

JT TEN - as joint tenants with Minors Act

right of survivorship (state)

and not as tenants in

common

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in above list.

A-3

47463786 v2



(FORM OF ASSIGNMENT)

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto
(Name and Address of Transferee)

the within Bond and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint
attorney to transfer the within Bond on the books kept for registration
thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:

Signature Guaranteed (Authorized Officer)

Notice: Signature(s) must be Notice: The signature to this assignment must
guaranteed by an institution correspond with the name of the registered
which is a participant in the holder as it appears upon the face

Securities Transfer Agents Medallion of the within Bond in every particular,

Program (“STAMP”) or similar program. without alteration or enlargement or any change

whatever.

A copy of the final approving legal opinion to be rendered shall accompany each Bond and
preceding the same a certificate shall appear, which shall be signed on behalf of the School District with a
facsimile signature of the Secretary of the Board of Trustees of the School District. Said certificate shall be
in substantially the following form:

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED that the following is a true and correct copy of the final legal opinion
(except for date and letterhead) of Burr & Forman LLP, Columbia, South Carolina, approving the issue of
the Bonds of which the within Bond is one, the original of which opinion was manually executed, dated and
issued as of the date of delivery of and payment for the Bonds, and a copy of which is on file with School
District No. 5 of Lexington County and Richland County, South Carolina.

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 5 OF LEXINGTON

COUNTY AND RICHLAND COUNTY,
SOUTH CAROLINA

By:

Secretary, Board of Trustees

47463786 v2



Appendix B
FORM OF OFFICIAL NOTICE OF SALE

$ * GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2022,
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 5 OF LEXINGTON COUNTY AND
RICHLAND COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

Date and Time of Sale: NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that bids for the purchase of
$ * General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022 (the “Bonds™), of School District No. 5 of
Lexington County and Richland County, South Carolina (the “School District”) will be received by the
Superintendent of the School District until ___ a.m. (South Carolina time) on .

, 2022,

THE SALE MAY BE CANCELLED OR POSTPONED OR ANY OTHER PROVISION
OF THIS OFFICIAL NOTICE OF SALE MAY BE AMENDED BY THE SCHOOL DISTRICT
UPON NO LESS THAN TWO HOURS PRIOR NOTICE COMMUNICATED
ELECTRONICALLY. IF SUCH A POSTPONEMENT, CHANGE OR AMENDMENT
OCCURS, BIDS WILL BE RECEIVED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THIS OFFICIAL NOTICE
OF SALE, AS MODIFIED BY SUCH NOTICE.

Electronic Bids Only: Electronic proposals must be submitted through IHS Markit’s
Parity/BidComp Competitive Bidding System (“Parity”). No electronic bids from any other providers of
electronic bidding services will be accepted. Information about the electronic bidding services of Parity
may be obtained from Parity, 450 West 33rd Street, 5th Floor, New York, New York 10001, Customer
Support, telephone (212) 849-5021.

The Bonds: Interest on the Bonds will be payable semiannually on March 1 and September 1 of
each year, until the Bonds mature, commencing September 1, 2022. The Bonds will be dated their date of
delivery, on or about May __, 2022, and will mature serially in annual installments on March 1 in each
of the years and in the principal amounts as shown below:

March 1 Principal
(Year) Amount*

Adjustment of Maturity Amounts: The School District reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to
increase or decrease the foregoing principal amounts of the Bonds (all calculations to be rounded up to
the nearest $5,000), provided that any such increase or decrease shall not exceed 15% of the par amount
of the Bonds or such other amount as approved by the winning bidder. Such adjustments, if any, shall be
made within twenty-four (24) hours of the award of the Bonds.

*Preliminary, subject to adjustment.

47463786 v2



In the event of any adjustments of the maturity amounts of the Bonds as described herein, no
rebidding or recalculation of the proposals submitted will be required or permitted. The total purchase
price of the Bonds will be increased or decreased in the direct proportion that the total adjustment bears
to the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds adjusted as specified herein, and the Bonds of each
maturity, as adjusted, will bear interest at the rate specified in the bid of the successful bidder. Such
adjustments, if any, will not change the selling compensation per $1,000 of par amount of the Bonds
from the selling compensation per $1,000 that would have been received based on the purchase price and
the initial reoffering prices in the winning bid.

Book-Entry-Only Bonds: The Bonds will be issued in fully-registered form. One Bond will be
issued to and registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New
York, New York (“DTC”), as registered owner of the Bonds and the Bonds will be immobilized in the
custody of DTC. DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. Individual purchases will be made
in book-entry-only form, in the principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof not exceeding
the principal amount of the Bonds. Purchasers will not receive physical delivery of certificates
representing their interest in the Bonds purchased. The winning bidder, as a condition to delivery of the
Bonds, will be required to deposit the Bond certificate with DTC.

Redemption Provisions: The Bonds will not be subject to redemption prior to their stated
maturities.

Registrar/Paying Agent: Within twenty-four (24) hours of the sale of the Bonds, the School
District shall name the Registrar/Paying Agent for the Bonds. The Registrar/Paying Agent shall be a
bank, trust company, depository or transfer agent located either within or without the State of South
Carolina.

Bid Requirements: Bidders shall specify the rate of interest per annum which the Bonds are to
bear, to be expressed in multiples of 1/20 or 1/8 of 1%. No interest rate for the Bonds can exceed five
percent (5%) per annum or be less than four percent (4%) per annum. The TIC (as defined below) shall
not exceed 2.5%. A BID FOR LESS THAN ALL THE BONDS OR A BID AT A PRICE LESS THAN
PAR WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED.

Award of Bid: The Bonds will be awarded to the bidder offering to purchase the Bonds at the
lowest true interest cost to the School District, such cost to be determined in accordance with the true
interest cost (TIC) method. The true interest cost will be determined by computing the total dollar
interest cost from the date of the Bonds to the respective maturity dates (based on a 360-day year of 12
months of 30 days each) and deducting therefrom the amount of the premium offered, if any, over and
above the principal amount. In the event of a tie bid, the winning bid will be awarded by lot. The School
District reserves the right to reject any and all bids or to waive irregularities in any bid. Bids will be
accepted or rejected no later than 3:00 p.m., South Carolina time, on the date of sale.

Good Faith Deposit: No good faith deposit is required.

Official Statement: Upon the award of the Bonds, the School District will prepare an official
statement (the “Official Statement”) in substantially the same form as the preliminary official statement
(the “Preliminary Official Statement”) subject to minor additions, deletions and revisions as required to
complete the Official Statement. Within seven (7) business days after the award of the Bonds, the School
District will deliver the Official Statement to the successful bidder in sufficient quantity to comply with
Rule G-32 of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

B-2

47463786 v2



Security: The Bonds shall constitute binding general obligations of the School District, and the
full faith, credit, resources and taxing power of the School District are irrevocably pledged for the
payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds as they respectively mature and to create such sinking
fund as may be necessary therefor. There shall be levied and collected annually upon all taxable property
of the School District a tax, without limitation as to rate or amount, sufficient for such purposes.

Continuing Disclosure: In order to assist the bidders in complying with Rule 15c2-12(b)(5)
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, the School District will undertake, pursuant to a
resolution and a Continuing Disclosure Certificate to provide certain annual financial information and
notices of the occurrence of certain events. A description of this undertaking is set forth in the Preliminary
Official Statement and will also be set forth in the Official Statement.

Legal Opinion: The School District shall furnish upon delivery of the Bonds the final approving
opinion of Burr & Forman LLP, Columbia, South Carolina, which opinion shall accompany each Bond,
together with the usual closing documents, including a certificate that no litigation is pending affecting the
Bonds.

Issue Price Certificate: The winning bidder shall assist the School District in establishing the
issue price of the Bonds and shall execute and deliver to the School District at delivery an “issue price”
certificate setting forth the reasonably expected initial offering price to the public, with such
modifications as may be appropriate or necessary, in the reasonable judgment of the winning bidder, the
School District and Bond Counsel. A sample copy of the certificate may be obtained from Burr &
Forman LLP.

The School District intends that the provisions of Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(f)(3)(i)
(defining “competitive sale” for purposes of establishing the issue price of the Bonds) will apply to the
initial sale of the Bonds (the “Competitive Sale Requirements”) because:

(1) the School District shall disseminate this Notice of Sale to potential underwriters
in a manner that is reasonably designed to reach potential underwriters;

2 all bidders shall have an equal opportunity to bid;

3 the School District may receive bids from at least three underwriters of
municipal bonds who have established industry reputations for underwriting new
issuances of municipal bonds; and

4) the School District anticipates awarding the sale of the Bonds to the bidder who
submits a firm offer to purchase the Bonds at the highest price (or lowest true
interest cost), as set forth in this Notice of Sale.

Any bid submitted pursuant to this Notice of Sale shall be considered a firm offer for the
purchase of the Bonds, as specified in the bid.

In the event that the Competitive Sale Requirements are not satisfied, the School District shall so
advise the winning bidder. The School District may determine to treat the initial offering price to the
public as of the sale date of the Bonds as the issue price of the Bonds (the “Hold-the-Offering-Price
Rule”). The School District shall promptly advise the winning bidder, at or before the time of award of
the Bonds, that the Bonds shall be subject to the Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule. Bids will not be subject
to cancellation in the event that the School District determines to apply the Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule

B-3

47463786 v2



to the Bonds. Bidders should prepare their bids on the assumption that the Bonds will be subject to the
Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule in order to establish the issue price of the Bonds.

By submitting a bid, the winning bidder shall (1) confirm that the underwriters have offered or
will offer the Bonds to the public on or before the date of award at the offering price (the “Initial
Offering Price”), or at the corresponding yield, set forth in the bid submitted by the winning bidder and
(2) agree, on behalf of the underwriters participating in the purchase of the Bonds, that the underwriters
will neither offer nor sell unsold Bonds to which the Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule shall apply to any
person at a price that is higher than the Initial Offering Price to the public during the period starting on
the sale date and ending on the earlier of the following:

(1) the close of the fifth (5™) business day after the sale date; or

(2 the date on which the underwriters have sold at least 10% of the Bonds to the
public at a price that is no higher than the Initial Offering Price to the public (the
“10% Test™).

The winning bidder will advise the School District promptly after the close of the fifth (5th)
business day after the sale date whether it has when the underwriters have sold 10% of that maturity of
the Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the Initial Offering Price to the public.

The School District acknowledges that, in making the representation set forth above, the winning
bidder will rely on (1) the agreement of each underwriter to comply with the Hold-the-Offering-Price
Rule, as set forth in an agreement among underwriters and the related pricing wires, (2) in the event a
selling group has been created in connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, the
agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group to comply with the Hold-the-Offering-
Price Rule, as set forth in a selling group agreement and the related pricing wires, and (3) in the event
that an underwriter is a party to a retail distribution agreement that was employed in connection with the
initial sale of the Bonds to the public, the agreement of each broker-dealer that is a party to such
agreement to comply with the Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule, as set forth in the retail distribution
agreement and the related pricing wires. The School District further acknowledges that each underwriter
shall be solely liable for its failure to comply with its agreement regarding the Hold-the-Offering-Price
Rule and that no underwriter shall be liable for the failure of any other underwriter, or of any dealer who
is a member of a selling group, or of any broker-dealer that is a party to a retail distribution agreement to
comply with its corresponding agreement regarding the Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule as applicable to the
Bonds.

By submitting a bid, each bidder confirms that: (1) any agreement among underwriters, any
selling group agreement and each retail distribution agreement (to which the bidder is a party) relating to
the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain
language obligating each underwriter, each dealer who is a member of the selling group, and each broker-
dealer that is a party to such retail distribution agreement, as applicable, to (a) report the prices at which
it sells to the public the unsold Bonds allotted to it until it is notified by the winning bidder that either the
10% Test has been satisfied as to the Bonds or all Bonds have been sold to the public and (b) comply
with the Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so long as directed by the
winning bidder and as set forth in the related pricing wires, and (2) any agreement among underwriters
relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or
will contain language obligating each underwriter that is a party to a retail distribution agreement to be
employed in connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public to require each broker-dealer that
is a party to such retail distribution agreement to (a) report the prices at which it sells to the public the

B-4
47463786 v2



unsold Bonds allotted to it until it is notified by the winning bidder or such underwriter that either the
10% Test has been satisfied as to the Bonds or all Bonds have been sold to the public and (b) comply
with the Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so long as directed by the
winning bidder or such underwriter and as set forth in the related pricing wires.

Sales of any Bonds to any person that is a related party to an underwriter shall not constitute
sales to the public for purposes of this Notice of Sale. Further, for purposes of this Notice of Sale:

(1) “public” means any person other than an underwriter or a related party,

(2 “underwriter” means (a) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract
with the School District (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting
syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public and (b) any
person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a
person described in clause (a) to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the
public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution
agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public),

3 a purchaser of any of the Bonds is a “related party” to an underwriter if the
underwriter and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (a) at least
50% common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if
both entities are corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of
another), (b) more than 50% common ownership of their capital interests or
profits interests, if both entities are partnerships (including direct ownership by
one partnership of another), or (¢) more than 50% common ownership of the
value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit
interests of the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the
other entity is a partnership (including direct ownership of the applicable stock
or interests by one entity of the other), and

(@) “sale date” means the date that the Bonds are awarded by the School District to
the winning bidder.

Financial Advisor: PFM Financial Advisors LLC (“PFM”) is acting as Financial Advisor (the
“Financial Advisor”) to the School District in connection with the issuance of the Bonds. PFM, in its
capacity as Financial Advisor, has not verified and does not assume any responsibility for the information,
covenants and representations contained in any of the legal documents with respect to the federal income
tax status of the Bonds, or the possible impact of any present, pending or future actions taken by any
legislative or judicial bodies or rating agencies.

Delivery: The Bonds will be delivered on or about May __ , 2022, in New York, New York, at the
expense of the School District, or at such other place as may be agreed upon with the purchasers at the
expense of the purchaser. The purchase price then due must be paid in federal funds or other immediately
available funds.

CUSIP Numbers: It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numbers will be set forth on the
Bonds, but neither the failure to print such numbers on any Bond nor any error with respect thereto shall
constitute cause for failure or refusal by the purchaser thereof to accept delivery of and pay for the Bonds in
accordance with the terms of its proposal. The Financial Advisor will request the assignment of CUSIP

B-5

47463786 v2



numbers prior to the sale of the Bonds; however, the CUSIP Service Bureau charge for the assignment of
said numbers will be the responsibility of and will be paid for by the successful bidder.

Additional Information: The Preliminary Official Statement with respect to the Bonds is available
via the internet at www.munios.com and will be furnished to any person interested in bidding for the Bonds.
The Preliminary Official Statement shall be reviewed by bidders prior to submitting a bid. Bidders may not
rely on this Notice of Sale as to the complete information concerning the Bonds. For additional information
relating to or to request a copy of the Preliminary Official Statement, please contact the School District’s
Bond Counsel, Francenia B. Heizer, Esquire, Burr & Forman LLP, telephone (803) 799-9800, e-mail:
theizer@burr.com or the Financial Advisor, Elise Lomel or Jay Glover, PFM Financial Advisors LLC,
telephone (404) 410-2227 or (407) 406-5760, respectively, e-mail: lomele@pfm.com or gloverj@pfm.com,
respectively.

School District No. 5 of Lexington County and
Richland County, South Carolina

47463786 v2


http://www.munios.com/
mailto:fheizer@burr.com
mailto:lomele@pfm.com
mailto:gloverj@pfm.com

Appendix C
FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the “Disclosure Certificate™) is executed and delivered
by School District No. 5 of Lexington County and Richland County, South Carolina (the “School
District”) in connection with the issuance of § General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022,
School District No. 5 of Lexington County and Richland County, South Carolina (the “Bonds”). The
Bonds are being issued pursuant to a Resolution adopted by the Board of Trustees of the School District
(the “Resolution”). The School District covenants and agrees as follows:

SECTION 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is being
executed and delivered by the School District for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds and in order to
assist the Participating Underwriter (defined below) in complying with the Rule (defined below).

SECTION 2. Definitions. The following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

“Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Report provided by the School District pursuant to, and
as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

“Dissemination Agent” shall mean the School District or any successor Dissemination Agent
designated in writing by the School District and which has filed with the School District a written
acceptance of such designation.

“Financial Obligation” is defined by the Rule as and for purposes of this Disclosure Certificate
shall mean (1) a debt obligation, (2) a derivative instrument entered into in connection with, or pledged
as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation, or (3) a guarantee of either
of the foregoing; provided, however, that a “Financial Obligation” shall not include municipal securities
as to which a final official statement has been provided to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board
consistent with the Rule.

“Listed Events” shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure Certificate.

“National Repository” shall mean for purposes of the Rule, the Electronic Municipal Market
Access (EMMA) system created by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

“Repository” shall mean the National Repository and each State Depository, if any.

“Participating Underwriter” shall mean and any other original underwriter of
the Bonds required to comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds.

“Rule” shall mean Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time.

“State Depository” shall mean any public or private repository or entity designated by the State
of South Carolina as a state depository for the purpose of the Rule. As of the date of this Certificate,
there is no State Depository.

C-1

47463786 v2



SECTION 3. Provision of Annual Reports.

(@) The School District shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to provide, not later
than February 1 of each year, commencing in 2023, to the Repository an Annual Report which is
consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. Not later than fifteen (15)
business days prior to such date the School District shall provide the Annual Report to the Dissemination
Agent, if other than the School District; provided, that if the audited financial statements required
pursuant to Section 4 hereof to be included in the Annual Report are not available for inclusion in the
Annual Report as of such date, unaudited financial statements of the School District may be included in
such Annual Report in lieu thereof, and the School District shall replace such unaudited financial
statements with audited financial statements within fifteen (15) days after such audited financial
statements become available for distribution. The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document
or as separate documents comprising a package, and may cross-reference other information as provided
in Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate; provided that the audited financial statements of the School
District may be submitted separately from the balance of the Annual Report.

(b) If the School District is unable to provide to the Repository an Annual Report by the date
required in subsection (a), the School District shall send a notice to the Repository, in substantially the
form attached hereto as Exhibit A.

(c) The Dissemination Agent shall:

(1) determine each year prior to the date for providing the Annual Report the name
and address of the Repository; and

(2 if the Dissemination Agent is other than the School District, file a report with the
School District and (if the Dissemination Agent is not the Registrar) the Registrar certifying
whether the Annual Report has been provided pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate, and, if
provided, stating the date it was provided, and listing the Repository to which it was provided.

SECTION 4. Content of Annual Reports. The School District’s Annual Report shall contain or
incorporate by reference the most recent audited financial statements, which shall be prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (or, if not in such conformity, to be
accompanied by a qualitative discussion of the differences in the accounting principles and the impact of
the change in the accounting principles on the presentation of the financial information) applicable to
governmental entities such as the School District, and shall, in addition, contain or incorporate by
reference the following information for the most recently completed fiscal year:

@) School District enroliment;
(b) Total state appropriations subject to withholding under Article X, Sec. 15,
South Carolina Constitution;

(c) Funding under the Education Finance Act, and the Education Improvement Act;
(d) Outstanding General Obligation Indebtedness of the School District;
(e) Market Value/Assessment Summary of taxable property in School District;

()] Tax rate for School District;
(9) Tax collections for School District; and
(h) Ten largest taxpayers (including fee-in-lieu-of-tax) for School District.

C-2

47463786 v2



Any or all of the items listed above may be incorporated by reference from other documents,
including official statements of debt issues with respect to which the School District is an “obligated
person” (as defined by the Rule), which have been filed with the Repository or the Securities and
Exchange Commission. If the document incorporated by reference is a final official statement, it must be
available from the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. The School District shall clearly identify
each such other document so incorporated by reference.

SECTION 5. Reporting of Significant Events.

@) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the School District shall give, or cause to be
given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events (the “Listed Events”):

(1) Principal and interest payment delinquencies;

(2 Non-payment related defaults;

3) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;

(@) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;

5) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

(6) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed
or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-
TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of
the security, or other material events affecting the tax status of the security;

(7) Modifications to rights of security holders;

(8) Bond calls;

€)] Tender offers;

(10)  Defeasances;

(11) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the securities;

(12)  Rating changes;

(13)  Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the School District;

(14)  The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the
School District or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the School
District other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive
agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive
agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms;

(15)  Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a
trustee.

(16)  Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the School District; or agreement to
covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a
Financial Obligation of the School District, any of which affect security holders;

(17)  Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other
similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the School District,
any of which reflect financial difficulties.

(b) Whenever the School District obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event
described in subsections (2)(2), (7), (8), (11), (14), (15) or (16) above, the School District shall as soon as
possible determine if such event would be material under applicable federal securities laws. If the School
District determines that knowledge of the occurrence of such event would be material under applicable
federal securities laws, the School District shall promptly, and no later than ten business days after the
occurrence of the event, file a notice of such occurrence with the Repository.

C-3

47463786 v2



(c) Whenever the School District obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event
described in subsections (a)(1), (3), (4), (5), (6), (9), (10), (12), (13) or (17) above, the School District
shall promptly, and no later than ten business days after the occurrence of the event, file a notice of such
occurrence with the Repository.

(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of Listed Events described in subsections (a)(8),
(9), and (10) above need not be given under this subsection any earlier than the notice (if any) of the
underlying event is given to owners of affected Bonds. For the purposes of the event identified in (a)(13)
above, the event is considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver,
fiscal agent or similar officer for the School District in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or
in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has
assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the School District, or if such
jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in
possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of
an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental
authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the School
District.

SECTION 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The School District’s obligations under this
Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of the
Bond.

SECTION 7. Dissemination Agent. The School District may, from time to time, appoint or
engage a Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate,
and may discharge any such Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent. The
initial Dissemination Agent shall be the School District.

SECTION 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure
Certificate, the School District may amend this Disclosure Certificate and any provision of this
Disclosure Certificate may be waived, if such amendment or waiver is supported by an opinion of
counsel expert in federal securities laws acceptable to the School District, to the effect that such
amendment or waiver would not, in and of itself, cause the undertakings herein to violate the Rule if such
amendment or waiver had been effective on the date hereof but taking into account any subsequent
change in or official interpretation of the Rule.

SECTION 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to
prevent the School District from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination
set forth in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other
information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is
required by this Disclosure Certificate. If the School District chooses to include any information in any
Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is specifically required
by this Disclosure Certificate, the School District shall have no obligation under this Certificate to update
such information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event.

SECTION 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the School District, or the Dissemination
Agent to comply with any provision of this Disclosure Certificate, any beneficial owner may take such
actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking injunctive relief or specific performance
by court order, to cause the School District, or the Dissemination Agent, as the case may be, to comply
with its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate. A default under this Disclosure Certificate shall
not be deemed an event of default under the Resolution, and the sole remedy under this Disclosure

C-4

47463786 v2



Certificate in the event of any failure of the School District, or the Dissemination Agent to comply with
this Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance.

SECTION 11. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent. The provisions of
this Section 11 shall apply if the School District is not the Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination
Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Certificate, and the
School District agrees to indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, directors, employees
and agents, harmless against any loss, expense and liabilities which they may incur arising out of or in
the exercise or performance of their powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and expenses
(including attorneys’ fees) of defending against any claim of liability, but excluding liabilities due to the
Dissemination Agent’s negligence or willful misconduct. The obligations of the School District under
this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent and payment of the Bond.

SECTION 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the
School District, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriter, and holders from time to time of
the Bonds and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 5 OF LEXINGTON
COUNTY AND RICHLAND COUNTY,
SOUTH CAROLINA

By:

Superintendent

Dated: _,2022

47463786 v2



EXHIBIT A

NOTICE TO REPOSITORY OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT

Name of School District: School District No. 5 of Lexington County and Richland County,
South Carolina

Name of Bond Issue: $ General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022,
School District No. 5 of Lexington County and
Richland County, South Carolina

Date of Issuance: _,2022

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that School District No. 5 of Lexington County and Richland
County, South Carolina (the “School District”) has not provided an Annual Report with respect to the
above-named Bonds as required by Sections 3 and 4 of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate executed
and delivered by the School District as Dissemination Agent. The School District has notified us in
writing that the Annual Report will be filed by

Dated:

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 5 OF LEXINGTON
COUNTY AND RICHLAND COUNTY,
SOUTH CAROLINA

47463786 v2



EXHIBIT G

The mission of School District Five of Lexington and
Richland Counties, in partnership with our stakeholders, is to
prepare all students to be college and career ready by
providing a challenging curriculum in a safe, secure, diverse,
and equitable learning environment focused on academic,
social, and emotional growth and development.



Facilities Master Plan

Guiding Principles

1. Community Analysis

2. Facilities Need Assessment
- Key Definitions

3. Enrollment and Projections
4. Instructional Plan Review

5. Plan



Community Analysis

Demographic Trend Study
e Professional Demographer

Economic Trend Study

e Legislative Delegation
® Chamber of Commerce
® Business Advisory




Facility Rating Chart

Excellent
Good
Fair
Poor
Total

4
10
0
4
24

2019 District-Wide Facilities Need Assessment by M.B.
Kahn Construction Co., Inc. had three (3) goals:

1.

To assess the District’s current facilities’
conditions, uses and maintenance needs

To offer options to address school operations
issues, such as aging structures

To provide construction strategies responsive to
future uses and learning methods in light of
funding constraints, existing projects and plans,
and current facility conditions



g

Poor Rating

Fair Rating

cris %‘H,.WE

< V.le

) — >LES

378 ;

ox © OpenStreetMap



Condition of Building - Excellent, Good, Fair, and Poor - 2019 District-Wide Facilities Need Assessment M.B. Kahn
Construction Company.

Core Capacity - Includes the use of areas such as media centers, cafeterias, multi-purpose areas, and PE/gymnasiums for
student use. Often designed larger than intended to accommodate growth in enrollment. For example: A school may have
a current enrollment of (800) students but is designed for an enrollment of (1200) students.

Program Capacity- includes the use of regular classroom space intended for instructional purposes. This does not include
areas such as computer labs or special education areas, as these areas are not counted in the program capacity.

Average Daily Attendance - The attendance rate of the enrolled students over the course of a year.

Average Daily Membership - The number of funded students on campus multiplied by weighted pupil unit divided by the
number of days (used for funding on 135th day report).

Enroliment/Headcount - The number of (funded or unfunded) students.
Report Dates - 10th, 45th*, 90th 135th*, 180th attendance reports.

The *45th determines any adjustments you make in the current year; the *135th determines the budget for next year



Key Definitions

Gross Square Footage - Total heating and cooling space in a school building.

DFES - 1953 PWES - 2021

eyt —r World
Language
. : Special Special 1st/ 2nd 1st/ 2nd
Music FlexStidio; g .| Education |° | Education Classroom Classroom
The ¢ 5
s Clark R e - - Al
Group, Inc. r =
1l ﬂ_f,,D g:‘:::mu -+
j=% ™ i ]
: t
o = z =
g3 | Extondod
T g 2 E Courtyard earning
4
@ & -
i
i — }
_‘ <
=" g i [
et ¥ 5 g = e s e
- [
';; s 1 — Arts & Maker !'E-:;taerr:‘?:: =
[l [ £ ¢ —_— Space
Ol amsm, z 3| " Lo
— ¢ Y P Y s il
¢
. g s s
cLassmoou é r _.—J
[55) 4] i 1 -
FLOOR PLANS ﬂ [ Ex ——
PARTS E & F r
s . ‘ i L
i : Admin
! | Classroom |Classroom




1}\_[:

DFES 1953 L)
[2e3]
|
CLABSACGOM |
i The
1
cLassROOM L Clark
= Group, Inc.
e 2
Columbiis, $C 29,
1.1 | i) -
I |
i e
mooll m@""’" [ A] 3
i
™~ 3
; =z Ed
= = s |
i S — CLASSROOM et z
< 223 » @ 7
- i | >_< o ]
| I g PPN cLassnoou i S ]
| w 9 £
— o -
%
£
CLASSACOM CLASSROOM 3
- :
- 1 < |z
] = = 1 [ ! 5' £ I
ezl i g o
BOYS
2 Lo o
\ lm =) e u . E g
T 55 8 |;
1 1
/1 FLOOR PLAN - PART "E* - = .|
Ale ] ECALE: Ua" = I-0" o E g :
CLASSROOM Q = =
w3
— o
1T} o
H
= =13
AT .
A 8
Al =
FLOOR PLANS |:
PARTS E & F |3
R RN - §
o e b
P wuw o | €
== Z=Al
/£ 2\ SECOND FLOOR PLAN - PART 'F" A1 6 i
W SCALE: /8" = I'-g" - ;




L —

PWES - 2021

A58 of

J g L

i1st/ 2nd
Classroom

1st/ 2nd
Classroom

1st/ 2nd
Classroom

1st/ 2nd
Classroom

Classroom

-——--—'*—.E

1st/ 2nd
Classroom

World p—
Language
Music Flex Studio Specizl Special 1ath-Hnid
- Education Education Classroom
= = g | Wy = 5 l 5 P A1 B W =
pr—
' -
Small Small l.
(Group Groupl [
] Extended
L E
Courtyard 1 geall Al
12 I
L= |
Media 4*-.« L
Center ‘5,5 2 ;
A =
e \ |
- - ] Ee———3 * - - j l
Extended
Arts & Maker Arts & Maker .| Le:;i:
g
Space Space
Multimedia I A e
=11 Lab L..
L 53 w) k L L l —‘. | ,—. 1 . 1 = 7 -
T T 8 I s | ' ™ T I I
? e — ™
P o | ]
= Admin 1st/ 2nd 1st/ 2nd 1st/ 2nd
I ’ [ =L Classroom Classroom Classroom
H — - o= - x J L——-————f‘—l —




Instructional Staff will work with advisory groups,
Parent Teacher Student Organizations (PTSOs) and
School Improvement Councils (SICs) to determine
appropriate instructional programs at each school and
work with the Operations staff to ensure the facility
can successfully operate current and future academic

programs.



The Plan

Facility Rating Chart

Excellent 4 Guiding Principle #1

Good 10

| No student or staff member
Fair 6 will learn or work in a fair or
Poor 4 poor facility.

Total 24




EXHIBIT H

Policy
DISCUSSION AND FIRST READING OF PROPOSED NEW BOARD POLICY — MARCH 14, 2022

FUNDING PROPOSALS, GRANTS, AND SPECIAL PROJECTS

Code DD Issued MODEL

In order to offer the best educational opportunities possible for students of the district, the board will
seek as—many external sources of revenue as possible to supplement the funds provided through local
taxation and the basic aid offered by the state.

The superintendent will notify the board of all funding proposals that are accepted.
Donations from Private Sources

The district accepts donations of money, securities, property, etc. from private sources for scholarships,
staff development, and other educational improvement purposes.

Such gifts will be approved by the board, administered by the superintendent, and used as instructed in
the terms of the gift or bequest.

The board will not accept bequests, endowments, or other gifts if the conditions of the gift remove any
portion of the public schools from control of the board.

School and District Grant Awards

The district will request and accept grants from state, federal, corporate, and private sources. All grants
sought by the district will be coordinated through the district grant writer fissert-title-here), reviewed by
the chief administrative and planning officer or designee eperations—officer, and approved by the
superintendent or designee. The purpose of district-level grants should be to generate resources that
advance the priorities of the district strategic plan in attaining the mission of the school district.

All grants sought by schools will be coordinated through the district grant writer, reviewed by the
director of elementary education and/or director of secondary education, and approved by the school
principal. The purpose of school-level grants should be to generate resources that support the
educational mission and priorities of each school, as articulated by the principal and the school’s
leadership team.

Crowdfunding

Crowdfunding is the practice of funding a specific idea or project by raising small donations from a large
number of individuals. This typically occurs on the internet through the use of various platforms (e.g.
Donors Choose).

All crowdfunding activities will be coordinated through the district grant writer, reviewed by the
director of elementary education and/or director of secondary education, and approved by the school
principal. The purpose of all school-level crowdfunding activities should be to generate resources to
support the educational mission and priorities of each school, as articulated by the principal and the
school’s leadership team.

SCSBA



Delegation of Responsibility

The Superintendent or designee shall create administrative procedures to effectuate this policy and
provide guidance to school district principals and other school staff on how best to approach
fundraising, grants and crowdfunding activities.

Adopted
Legal References:
A. S.C. Code of Laws, 1976, as amended:

1. Section 59-19-170 - Acceptance and holding of property by trustees.
2. Section 59-69-30 - Investment of funds held for an educational purpose.

SCSBA



EXHIBIT 1
Policy

DISCUSSION AND FIRST READING OF PROPOSED SCSBA MODEL POLICY — MARCH 14, 2022
BOARD MEMBER CONDUCT

Code Bc Issued DRAFTI19

Because of the importance of the board’s responsibility to make decisions related to the
district’s educational program while maintaining effective relationships with school
administrators, staff, and community members, the board will conduct themselves
professionally in accordance with the level of responsibility bestowed upon them by the
public.

It is the responsibility of each board member to do the following:

e Remember that the first and greatest concern must be the educational welfare of all
students attending public schools.

e Become familiar with district policies, rules, and procedures as well as state and federal
school laws and regulations.

e Have a general knowledge of educational goals and objectives of the district.

e  Work harmoniously with other board members without trying to dominate the board or
neglect one’s share of the work.

* Vote and act in board meetings impartially for the good of the district, representing all
district constituents honestly and equally.

* Recognize that authority rests only with the board in official meetings and that the
individual member has no legal status to bind the board outside of such meetings.

¢ Refuse to participate in irregular or secret meetings which are not official and which all
members or the public do not have the opportunity to attend.

e Accept the will of the majority vote in all cases and support the resulting policy or
decision.

e Maintain the confidentiality of all matters discussed in executive session.

e Understand that the basic function of a board is policymaking, not administration, and
accept the responsibility of learning to discriminate intelligently between these two
functions.

e Strive to procure, when a vacancy exists, the best professional leader available for the
superintendency.

e Give the superintendent full administrative authority for properly discharging his/her
professional duties and hold him/her responsible for acceptable results.

e Refer suggestions and complaints to the superintendent and abstain from individual
counsel and action.

o Participate in the various board training opportunities which are offered locally,
regionally, statewide, and nationally.

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties  (see next page)



PAGE 2 - BC - BOARD MEMBER CONDUCT

e Respond, as appropriate, to the wishes and desires expressed by the community and to
educate the public on the district’s educational program and policies in such a way as to
promote community interest and support.

Adopted *

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties



EXHIBIT J

CURRENT POLICY
Policy BCA Board Member Code of Ethics

Issued 1/06
Purpose: To establish the basic structure for ethical board conduct.

The public schools play a vital and important role in our state and country by providing the basic
foundation for democratic living and for sustaining the American way of life. Therefore, school board
membership represents a challenging responsibility. This code of ethics is adopted by the board as a
guide to its members as they strive to render effective and efficient service to their community.

A board member should honor the critical responsibilities that his/her membership demands by doing
the following:

e thinking always in terms of "children first"

¢ understanding that the basic function of a school board is policymaking, not administration, and
by accepting the responsibility of learning to discriminate intelligently between these two
functions

¢ accepting the responsibility along with his/her fellow board members of ensuring that optimal
facilities and resources are provided for the proper functioning of schools

¢ refusing to play politics in either the traditional partisan or any petty sense
e representing, at all times, the entire school district

¢ accepting the responsibility of becoming well informed concerning the duties of board members
and the proper functions of public schools

¢ recognizing responsibility as a state official to seek the improvement of education throughout the
state

A board member should respect his/her relationships with other members of the board by doing the
following:

* recognizing that authority rests only with the board in official meetings and that the individual
member has no legal status to bind the board outside of such meetings

e recognizing the integrity of his/her predecessors and associates and the merit of their work

* refusing to make statements or promises as to how he/she will vote on any matter which should
properly come before the board as a whole

e making decisions only after all facts bearing on a question have been presented and discussed
* respecting the opinion of others and graciously conforming to the principle of majority rule

* refusing to participate in irregular meetings such as secret or "star chamber" meetings which
are not official and which all members do not have the opportunity to attend

* maintaining the confidentiality of matters discussed in executive session

A board member should maintain desirable relations with the superintendent of schools and his/her
staff by doing the following:

e striving to procure, when a vacancy exists, the best professional leader available for the head
administrative post

e giving the superintendent full administrative authority for properly discharging his/her
professional duties and holding him/her responsible for acceptable results
® acting only upon the recommendation of the superintendent in matters of employment or
dismissal of school personnel
BCA
1 of2



¢ having the superintendent present at all meetings of the board except when his/her contract and
salary are under consideration

e referring all complaints to the superintendent and discussing them only at a regular meeting if a
failure to arrive at an administrative solution occurs

e striving to provide adequate safeguards around the superintendent and other staff members to
the end that they can live happily and comfortably in the community and discharge their
educational functions on a thoroughly professional basis

e presenting personal criticisms of any employee directly to the superintendent
Adopted 2/24/69; Revised 1/9/06
Legal references:

School board members are under the jurisdiction of the " Ethics, Government Accountability and
Campaign Reform Act," Section 8-13-100, et seq., S.C. Code, and are subject to rules of
conduct of the statute.

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties

BCA
2 of2



Policy

DISCUSSION AND FIRST READING OF PROPOSED SCSBA MODEL POLICY — MARCH 14, 2022

BOARD MEMBER CODE OF ETHICS

Code BCA Issued DRAFTI1 9

The board desires to operate in the most ethical manner possible, and in furtherance of that
goal, adopts this code of ethics to serve as a guide to its members as they strive to render
effective and efficient service.

In carrying out his/her duties, a board member will not do the following:

e perform an official act which directly and substantially confers an economic benefit on a
business or other undertaking in which he/she has a substantial financial interest or in
which he/she is engaged as a counsel, consultant, representative, or agent

e accept a gift of substantial value, or substantial economic benefit tantamount to a gift of
substantial value, as a payment or reward for official action taken or advice and
assistance given

e disclose or use confidential information acquired in the course of official duties for
personal financial gain, which includes, but is not limited to, economic gain for family
members, associates, or business interests

e employ or promote a family member to a position which the board member supervises
or manages (i.e. superintendent)

e participate in an action relating to the discipline of a family member

e accept anything of value for speaking before a public or private group as a board member

e neglect to annually submit a statement of economic interest to the South Carolina Ethics
Commission

It will not be considered a breach of ethics for a board member to receive the following:

e an occasional non-pecuniary gift which is insignificant in value

e anon-pecuniary award publicly presented in recognition of public service

e payment or reimbursement for actual and necessary expenditures for travel and
subsistence for attendance at a speaking engagement, convention, or other meeting at
which he/she is scheduled to participate

e a benefit as an indirect consequence of transacting district business

Each board member will be knowledgeable of and comply with these and all other applicable
provisions of the S.C. Ethics, Government Accountability, and Campaign Reform Act.

Adopted 2/24/69; Revised 1/9/06, *

Legal References:

A. S.C. Code of Laws, 1976, as amended:
1. Section 8-13-100, ef seq. - Ethics, Government Accountability, and Campaign Reform Act.
2. Section 59-19-300 - Prohibits receiving pay as teacher in same district where serving on
board.
3. Section 59-25-10 - Prohibits board members from employing members of immediate family
as teachers, with exceptions.

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties



Policy
DISCUSSION AND FIRST READING OF PROPOSED REVISIONS BY BOARD POLICY COMMITTEEE — MARCH 14, 2022
BCA — BOARD MEMBER CODE OF ETHICS

Issued 1/06

Purpose: The Board and its members will conduct themselves lawfully with integrity and high ethical
standards in order to model the behaviors expected of staff and students and to build public

confidence and credibility. Fe-establish-the-basic-structure-for-ethical-board-conduct-—The-public

i o e ':.': S - .“: TR T =i - < —y "‘:‘ aSar e ':
represents-a-challengingrespensibility- This code of ethics is adopted by the board as a guide to its
members as they strive to render effective and efficient service to their community.

A board member should honor the critical responsibilities that his/her membership demands by doing
the following:

e thinking always in terms of "children first"

e understanding that the basic function of a school board is policymaking, not administration, and
by accepting the responsibility of learning to discriminate intelligently between these two
functions

e accepting the responsibility along with his/her fellow board members of ensuring that optimal
facilities and resources are provided for the proper functioning of schools

e refusing to play politics in either the traditional partisan or any petty sense

e representing, at all times, the entire school district

e accepting the responsibility of becoming well informed concerning the duties of board members
and the proper functions of public schools

e recognizing responsibility as a state official to seek the improvement of education throughout
the state

A board member should respect his/her relationships with other members of the board by doing the
following:

e recognizing that authority rests only with the board in official meetings and that the individual
member has no legal status to bind the board outside of such meetings

e recognizing the integrity of his/her predecessors and associates and the merit of their work

e refusing to make statements or promises as to how he/she will vote on any matter in which the
board is presiding in a quasi-judicial capacity and in which the matter should properly come
before the board as a whole

e making decisions only after all facts bearing on a question have been presented and discussed

e respecting the opinion of others and graciously conforming to the principle of majority rule

e refusing to participate in irregular meetings such as secret or "star chamber" meetings which are
not official and which all members do not have the opportunity to attend

e maintaining the confidentiality of matters discussed in executive session

A board member should maintain desirable relations with the superintendent of schools and his/her
staff by doing the following:

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties



e striving to procure, when a vacancy exists, the best professional leader available for the head
administrative post

e giving the superintendent full administrative authority for properly discharging his/her
professional duties and holding him/her responsible for acceptable results

¢ acting only upon the recommendation of the superintendent in matters of employment or
dismissal of school personnel

¢ having the superintendent or his designee present at all meetings of the board except when
his/her contract and salary are under consideration

e referring all complaints to the superintendent and discussing them only at a regular meeting ifa
failure to arrive at an administrative solution occurs

s striving to provide adequate safeguards around the superintendent and other staff members to
the end that they can live happily and comfortably in the community and discharge their
educational functions on a thoroughly professional basis

» presenting personal criticisms of any employee directly to the superintendent

Adopted 2/24/69; Revised 1/5/06
Legal references:

School board members are under the jurisdiction of the " Ethics, Government Accountability and
Campaign Reform Act," Section 8-13-100, et seq,, S.C. Code, and are subject to rules of conduct
of the statute.

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties



CURRENT POLICY EXHIBIT K

Policy BCB Board Member Conflict of Interest

Issued 12/09
Purpose: To establish the basic structure for determining board member conflict of interest.

A trustee may provide services or sell products to the district where he/she is a board member
provided all transactions are in accordance with the State Ethics Act (see policy BCA).

If, in the discharge of official responsibilities, the board member is required to take an action or make
a decision which affects his/her economic interest or the economic interest of a member of his/her
immediate family or an individual with whom he/she is associated, the board member must prepare a
written statement outlining the conflict and give it to the chairman of the board. The board member
must also be excused from deliberating or voting on the matter. The minutes of the meeting should
reflect the disqualification and reasons for it.

The board member may vote on matters where he/she has no greater interest than does any other
member of the class to which the board member belongs. For example, a board member may vote on
a budget that includes salaries of all employees, even if the board member has a family member
employed by the district. However, the board member may not vote on the contract of the family
member.,

The State Ethics Act provides that a public official may not have an economic interest in a contract
with the district if the official is authorized to perform an official function relating to the contract. The law
defines official function to include accepting bids and awarding contracts.

A board member may not participate in an action relating to the discipline of his/her family member.

A board member may not receive pay as a teacher of a public school that is located in the same
school district where such person is a trustee.

A board member will not be employed by the district. This does not apply to a board member's service
as a trustee.

Nepotism

South Carolina law Section 59-25-10 provides that no board member's immediate family member
may be employed as a teacher without the written consent of the board of trustees.

No employee who is an immediate family member (spouse, parent, child, sibling) of a board
member/superintendent is eligible for position promotion during the tenure of such board
member/superintendent.

When a board member's immediate family member is being recommended for any position in the
district, the board member will disclose this to the other board members and recuse him/herself from
the vote to hire that employee.

An individual who is a candidate for employment in the district will, upon offer of employment, disclose
that he/she has an immediate family member who is an employee of the district.

The district will not place an employee in a position wherein an employee will exercise direct
administrative or supervisory authority over a member of his/her immediate family. Supervisory
authority includes principal and assistant principal in a school. Neither a board member nor an
employee may participate in an action relating to the discipline of his/her immediate family member.

BCB
1 of2



This rule applies to all levels and categories of certified, administrative and support staff employees in
the school district.

This prohibition of employment and/or promotion does not apply to individuals employed and/or
promoted prior to the passage of this policy.

Adopted 8/1/73; Revised 11/16/81, 4/6/92, 1/9/06, 12/14/09
Legal references:
S.C. Constitution:
Article XVII, Section 1A - Dual office holding prohibited.
S.C. Code, 1976, as amended:
Section 8-13-100, et seq. - State Ethics Act.

Section 59-19-300 - Prohibits receiving pay as teacher in same district where serving on
board.

Section 59-25-10 - Prohibits board from employing members of immediate family, with
exceptions.

Section 59-31-590 - Prohibits service as agent of school book publisher.

Section 59-69-260 - Authorizes board member to provide services or sell products to the
district...so long as these transactions are in accordance with state ethical provision of law.

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties

BCB
2 of2



Policy
DISCUSSION AND FIRST READING OF PROPOSED REVISIONS — MARCH 14, 2022

BCB - BOARD MEMBER CONFLICT OF INTEREST
Issued 12/09

Board members are required to disclose any potential conflict of interest to the board. A board member
with a personal or private interest in a matter proposed or pending before the board will disclose such
interest to the board, will not deliberate on the matter, will not vote on the matter, and will not attempt
to influence other members of the board regarding the matter.

If, in the discharge of official responsibilities, the board member is required to take action or make a
decision which affects his/her economic interest or the economic interest of a family member or an
individual or business with whom he/she is associated, the board member must prepare a written
statement outlining the conflict and give it to the chairman of the board. Fhe-board-membermust-alse
be-exeused-from-deliberatingor-veting-on-the-matter: The minutes of the meeting should reflect the
disqualification-and-reasensforit nature of the conflict and the board member’s recusal.

The board member may vote on matters where he/she has no greater interest than does any other
member of the board. For example, a board member may vote on a budget that includes salaries of all
empleyees staff members, even if the board member has a family member employed by the district.
However, the board member may not vote on the contract of the family member.

The S.C. Ethics, Government Accountability, and Campaign Reform Act (“Ethics Act”) provides that a
public official may not have an economic interest in a contract with the district if the official is authorized
to perform an official function relating to the contract. The law defines official function to include
accepting bids and awarding contracts.

A board member may provide services or sell products to the district in which he/she serves, provided
any such all transactions are in compliance aceerdance with the State Ethics Act and the board member
recuses him/herself is-excluded from deliberating or voting on the matter.

A board member may not participate in an action relating to the discipline of his/her family member.

Nepotism

Seuth-Carelina-law-Section-59-25-10-prevides-that-no beard-members-immediate family member of a
board member will be newly employed as a teacher or as an administrator witheut-the-written-consent

approval-ofthe-board.

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties  (see next page)



PAGE 2 - BCB - BOARD MEMBER CONFLICT OF INTEREST

When a board member’s imwmediate family member is being recommended for any position in the
district, the board member will disclose this to the other board members and recuse him/herself from
the vote to hire that employee.

autherity-ireludesprincipal-and-assistant-principan-a-schoeeok-Neither a board member nor an
employee may participate in an action relating to the discipline of his/her immediate family member.
This rule applies to all levels and categories of certified, administrative and support staff employees in
the school district.

This does not apply to teachers or administrators employed before his/her family member became a
member of the board.

“Family Member” for purposes of this policy means an individual who is a spouse, parent, brother,
sister, child, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law,
grandparent or grandchild.

Employment and Volunteering Prohibited

A board member may not receive pay as a teacher of a public school, or otherwise be employed, in the
same district where he/she serves. This includes employment handled through third party entities such
as temporary agencies that place substitute teachers. A board member is not permitted to serve in a
volunteer position in the district whereas—he/she would have responsibility for a curricular, co-
curricular, extracurricular program or activity, or students and would report directly to the
superintendent, principal, athletic director, or other school administrator.

Other Conflicts of Interest
In carrying out his/her duties, a board member will not do the following:

e perform an official act which directly and substantially confers an economic benefit on a business
or other undertaking in which he/she has a substantial financial interest or in which he/she is
engaged as a counsel, consultant, representative, or agent

e accept a gift of substantial value, or substantial economic benefit tantamount to a gift of substantial
value, as a payment or reward for official action taken or advice and assistance given

e disclose or use confidential information acquired in the course of official duties for personal
financial gain, which includes, but is not limited to, economic gain for family members, associates,
or business interests

e employ or promote a family member to a position which the board member supervises or manages
(i.e. superintendent)

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties



PAGE 3 - BCB - BOARD MEMBER CONFLICT OF INTEREST

e participate in an action relating to the discipline of a family member

e accept anything of value for speaking before a public or private group as a board member

e neglect to annually submit a statement of economic interest to the South Carolina Ethics
Commission

e special treatment should not be considered for family members of a board member in any school
or personnel matter

It will not be considered a breach of ethics for a board member to receive the following:

an occasional non-pecuniary gift which is insignificant in value

e anon-pecuniary award publicly presented in recognition of public service
payment or reimbursement for actual and necessary expenditures for travel and subsistence for
attendance at a speaking engagement, convention, or other meeting at which he/she is scheduled
to participate

e a benefit as an indirect consequence of transacting district business

Each board member will be knowledgeable of and comply with these and all other applicable provisions
of the S.C. Ethics, Government Accountability, and Campaign Reform Act.

Adopted 8/1/73; Revised 11/16/81, 4/6/92, 1/9/06, 12/14/09, *

Legal References:

A. S.C. Constitution:
1. Article XVII, Section 1A - Dual office holding prohibited.

B. S.C. Code of Laws, 1976, as amended:

1. Section 8-13-100, et seq. - Ethics, Government Accountability, and Campaign Reform Act.

2. Section 59-19-300 - Prohibits receiving pay as teacher in same district where serving on board.

3. Section 59-25-10 - Prohibits board from employing members of immediate family as a teacher,
with exceptions.

4. Section 59-31-590 - Prohibits service as agent of school book publisher.

5. Section 59-69-260 - Authorizes board members to provide services or sell products to the district
so long as these transactions are in accordance with state ethical provision of law.

C. Attorney General’s Opinion:
1. Op. S.C. Att’y Gen., 2016 WL 386066 (January 5, 2016) A master-servant conflict would arise if

a board member were to serve as the head or assistant coach, even on a volunteer basis, and
as a trustee of the board in the same district.

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties



	3-14-2022 Board Packet_
	3-14-2022_Board Packet
	scan
	3-14-2022 Board Packet
	3-14-2022 Agenda
	Minutes 2-28-2022
	Exhibit C
	Exhibit D
	Exhibit E
	Exhibit H
	Exhibit I
	Exhibit J
	Exhibit K


	Exhibit F
	Cover Letter
	Spring Bond Issuance Exhibit
	First Reading of Spring Bond Resolution.pdf
	Resolution for Lex_Rich 5 Series 2022 Bonds.pdf



	3-14-2022 Guiding Principles



